APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE

P
f)'!w' 11/3/15

Reports & SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ITEM NO.
Recommendations QFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A SUBDIVISION
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR (=, 5,

HORIZON/FRANKLIN 2-LOT CSM LOCATED AT THE
EXTENSION OF 8. 80" STREET NORTH OF W.
STONEWQOD DRIVE

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the approval of Horizon/Franklin 2-Lot CSM, staff has drafted the subdivision development
agreement. The development is located on the extension of S. 80™ Street north of W. Stonewood Drive
in the Stonewood Subdivision.

ANALYSIS
The subdivisionm development agreement provides for the necessary public improvements required for

this development. Included in the agreement is the extension of sanitary sewer, water main and street
with curb and gutter in a cul-de-sac accessing the two lots.

OPTIONS
It is important to adopt the subdivision development agreement as this is the tool to provide for the

proper installation of the public improvements and with the letter of credit guarantees that all
improvements will be installed per plan and specifications.

FISCAL NOTE

All development costs including engineering review and inspection costs will be paid by the developer.

RECOMMENDATION

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015 a resolution authorizing certain officials to execute a
subdivision development agreement for Horizon/Franklin 2-lot CSM located at the extension of S. o™
Street north of W. Stonewood Drive.

Department of Engineering
RIR/db
ca\SDA Horizon Franklin 2 lot CSM 2015

49



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2015- |

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
HORIZON/FRANKLIN 2-LOT CSM
LOCATED AT THE EXTENSION OF S. 80™ STREET
NORTH OF W. STONEWOOD DRIVE

WHEREAS, the Common Council at its regular meeting on July 21, 2015 recommended
approval of the Horizon/Franklin 2-Lot Certified Survey Map.

Certified Survey Map subject to the execution of a Subdivision Development Agreement, and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Franklin to provide an orderly planned
development of the development known as Horizon/Franklin 2-Lot Certified Survey Map, and

WHEREAS, the developer of the Certified Survey Map is willing to proceed with the
installation of the improvements provided for in the subdivision development agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the
Subdivision Development Agreement on behalf of the City with the developer of the
Horizon/Franklin 2-Lot Certified Survey Map.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to record the Subdivision
Development Agreement with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council on the day of
, 2015 by Alderman
Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the ~day of
, 2015,
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L, Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

RJR/db

Resols\SDA Horizon/Franklin 2 lot CSM 2015



CITY OF FRANKLIN

WISCONSIN

SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR

HORIZON/FRANKLIN 2-LOT CSM

October 2015
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EXHIBIT "D"
TO
SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
HORIZON/FRANKLIN 2-LOT CSM

ESTIMATED IMPROVEMENT COSTS

All improvement costs, including but not limited to preparation of plans, installation of facilities and
inspection shall be borne by the Subdivider in accordance with Paragraph (4) of this Agreement.

Said costs for the project are estimated to be as follows:

DESCRIPTION COSTS
Grading (including Brosion Control) $ 2,000
Sanitary System 13,250
Water System 13,250

Storm Sewer System R
Paving (including sidewall) 46,500
Street Trees (§  /lot) —_
Street Lights { ) @ $2,500 N

Streat Signs 500
Underground Electrie, Gas and Telephone 1,000
Retention Basin N
SUBTOTAL
Engineering/Consulting Services 76,500
Municipal Services . 6,000
(7% of Subtotal) . :
Contingency Fund 5,355
(10% of Subiotal)
TOTAL: $95,505

Total: Ninety Five Thousand, Five Hundred Five and 00/100 Dollars.

APPROVED BY: G&J:/‘//@zazmx

Glen E. Morrow, City Engineer
DATE; tofzelzonvs

- 16 -
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10.

EXHIBIT "E"
TO
SUBDIYISION DEVELOFMENT AGREEMENT
FOR
HORIZON/FRANKLIN 2-LOT CS8M

ADDITIONAL SUBDIVISION
REQUIREMENTS

The Subdivider shall make every effort to protect and retain all existing trees, shiubbery,
vines and grasses pursuant 1o the approved Natural Resource Protestion Plan (the “NRPP™),
Tress shall be protected and preserved during construction in accordance with sound
conservation practices as cutlined in section 15-8,0204 o-f of the UDO,

The Subdivider shall cavse all grading, excavations, open cuts, side slopes and other land
surface disturbances to be so mulched, secded, sodded or otherwise protected that erosion,
siltation, sedimentation snd washing ave prevented in socordance with the plans and
speeifications approved by the City Engineer as cutlined in soction 15-8.0203H 1-5 of the
uDO.,

The Subdivider agrees to pay the City for sirest trees planted by the City on
at the rate of $300,00 per tree with a planting
distance bstwaen trees of 75 feef on the average, The City shall determine the planting
schedule and shall be responsible for tree mainienance and replacement except for damage
caused by the developer, the developer's sub-contractors, or the ot owners,

The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from buildings
under construction within the Subdivision. The Subdivider shall clean up atl debris within
forty-cight (48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer,

The Subdivider shall be responsible for cleaning up the mud and dint on the roadways until
such time as the final lift of asphalt has been installed. The Subdivider shell clean the
roadways within forty-eight {48) hours after receiving a notice from the City Engineer,

Prior to commencmg site grading, the Subdivider shall submit for approval by the City
Engincer an erosion and silt control plan, Said plan shall provide sufficient control of the
site to prevent siltation downstreem from the site, The Subdivider shall maintain the erosion
and siltation control until such time that vegetation sufficient to equal pre-existing
conditions,

‘The Subdivider shall install an 8 inch diameter water main on S, 80" Street from the
existing water main located at Stonewood Drive of the development,

Prior to commencing any lund disturbance the developer shall employ a forestry expert
approved by the Environmentzl Commission to review the development and during the
development process make periodic inspections fo menitor the activity elative to the
protection of the woodlands. Periodic reports shall be furnished to the Envirormental
Comunission, Planning Manager and City Engineer, the purpose of these requirements bemg
to ensure compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance,

The Subdivider shall inform the persons purchaging lote of their obligation to cut weeds 1o
conform to the City’s noxious weed ordinance,

Construction Requirements!

a, During construction, all vehicles and equipment shall park on the site. Parking shall
not be permitted on any external public right-of-way.

b, Prior to Issuznce of amy buiiding permits other then in the case of the issuance of any
model structure permits, all necessary grading and improvements shall be completed
as directed by the City Engineer.

c ALl tratfic shall ester the site from 8, 807 Street.

- 17 -
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STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - '

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING A CITY BUILDING, PARKS AND FACILITIES
NAMING POLICY

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the value of establishing a uniform
policy to address the naming of City buildings; parks and facilities to assist in the consideration of
requests received and proposals and considerations made from time to time to name City property;
and

WHEREAS, the Parks Commission and the Board of Public Works having considered the
terms of a naming policy for City property as directed by the Common Council and having reported
their respective reccommendations to the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered such recommendation in its
deliberations and having determined a policy for the naming of City property which will promote
the public welfare and best interests of the City.

WHEREAS, the Common Council needs to modify and rescend Resolution 2010-6634 “A
Resolution Establishing A City Buildings, Parks And Facilities Naming Policy”

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the naming of City buildings, parks and facilities be conducted as
follows:

City of Franklin Public Buildings, Parks and Facilities Naming Policy

L. Purpose
The purpose of this policy is to establish a uniform procedure for the naming of City buildings,
parks and facilities throughout the City of Franklin.

II. Authorization

The Common Council shall have the authority for the naming of all City buildings, parks and
facilities by passing or rejecting a resolution at a regular special Common Council meeting. The
Common Council shall request the review and recommendation of the Parks Commission for the
naming of any public park or park facility. The Common Council shall request the review and
recommendation of the Board of Public Works for the naming of any public building. In the event
the Common Council does not receive the requested recommendation from the Commission or the
Board within 45 days of such request, respectively, the Common Council may take action without
such recommendation(s).

I Objectives
e Provide name identification
e Provide citizen/neighborhood input into the process
o Insure control for naming policy

IV Qualifying Name
e Geographic location to facility
¢ Outstanding feature
¢ Adjoining subdivision
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» Historical event, group, or individual; except that eligibility shall commence only afier five
years following the event or other basis establishing the historical significance

o Exceptional service in the public interest that has had a major impact and benefit to the. City
by an individual who demonstrates dedication to service to the City and/or to individuals,
families, groups, or community services, extraordinarily above'and beyond the call of duty;
except that in the event of a public employee or elected or appointed official, eligibility shall
commence after five years following the completion of their public service unless approved

by the Common Council at the request of another City Board or Commission.
o Exceptional service in the public building, park or facility's interest
¢ Contribution to acquisition/development of the public building, park or facility

V., Naming City Buildings, Parks and Facilities

The City's approval of a naming proposal is the conferral of a privilege, not a right, and at all times
the City shall reserve the right to reject any naming proposal for any reason not prohibited by law.
The following guidelines will be used when naming a public building, park or facility:

1. A name is intended to be permanent.

2. Duplication of other places or facility names in the City shall not be considered.

3, Any consideration of a proposal for a name must be commenced by a motion authorizing the
same made by the Common Council.

4, Prominent geographic featnres or local reference points (i.e., hill, stream, lake, notable tree,
street, community or neighborhood) shall be considered for a potential name,

5. After the Common Council preliminarily decides upon a name, public notice of the
recommended name shall be published as a Class 2 notice, specifying a thirty (30) day public
comment petiod in the City's official newspaper. Citizen comments and recommendations must be
in writing to the City Clerk and must be postmarked within the thirty (30) day public comment
period. :

6. After the thirty (30) day public comment period, the Common Council will pass a resolution
adopting or rejecting the name.

7. An existing name of a public building, park and/or facility, particularly one of local or national
importance or outstanding feature, shall not be changed unless there are extraordinary
circumstances of local or national interest,

V1. Renaming

a. The renaming of public buildings, parks and facilities is strongly discouraged. It 18
recommended that efforts to change a name be subject to the most critical examination so as not to
diminish the original justification for the name or discount the value of the prior contributors.

b. City buildings, parks and facilities named after individuals shall never be changed unless
it is found that the individual's personal character is or was such that the continued use of the name
for a park or facility would not be in the best interest of the connmurity.

¢. In order for a City building, park or facility to be considered for renaming, the
recommended name must qualify according to Sections IV and V of this Policy.

V1. Other Naming Altematives

a. City buildings, parks and facilities that are donated to the City can be named by deed
restriction by the donor. The naming and acceptance of land is subject to the guidelines set forth
above and approval by the Common Council.

b. A facility within a park, ie,, playground, picnic shelter, etc., can be named separately
from the park or facility location subject to this Policy.

c. This Policy does not apply to the naming of public streets.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2015,
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ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
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STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -

A RESOLUTION TO ENGAGEME JSD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC FOR DESIGN
SERVICES FOR A TRAIL AND BRIDGE CROSSING EAST BRANCH OF THE ROOT RIVER
IN THE AMOUNT OF $103,631.

WHEREAS, there is a dedicated casement for the construction of a pathway from W. River
Park Court, crossing East Branch of Root River, and through an outlot to the South River Lane; and

WHEREAS, planning, design, and permitting is necessary to construct trail and bridge
crossing ; and

WHEREAS, Staff has a working relationship with JSD Professional Services; and

WHEREAS, JSD Professional Services and theoir proposed subconsultants are competent
professional engineering consultants in the design of pathways and bridges; and

WHEREAS, a August 14, 2015 professional engineering proposal from JSD Professional
Services includes a lump sum fee, not to exceed $103,631for survey, design, and permitting
services,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute an agreement whereby JSD

Professional Services shall provide design services for the pathway and bridge for a fee of
$103,631.

This agreement being subject to review and approval of the City Attorney.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this

day of , 2015 by Alderman
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2015, :
APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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J 5 g Professional Services, Inc. “Building Relationships with a Commitment to Client Satisfaction

v Engineers * Surveyors * Planpers through Trust, Quality and Experience”

August 14, 2015

Mr. Glen Morrow

City of Franklin

9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, W 53132

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services
River Park Path
Franklin, Wi
Project No. 15-6969

Dear Mr. Morrow,

Thank you for considering JSD Professional Services, Inc. (JSD) to provide professional
surveying and engineering services for the above-referenced project. We are pleased fo
submit this proposal and look forward to working with you on this project. Please carefully
review the following scope of services and feel free to contact us with any questions or
comments,

SCOPE OF SERVICES

TASK1 Topographic Survey - JSD Professional Services, Inc. (JSD) will provide a
Topographic Survey for the portion of the project site that are necessary for
path / bridge design, bridge hydraulic analysis and floodplain analysis.
Specific survey elements will include:

o Topographic survey of proposed pedestrian path route, including all visible
features within fifty feet of the path centerline. _

« River cross-sections at the following intervals either direction from the proposed
crossing: every 50 feet for the first 300 feet, every 100 feet for the next 1000 feet,
and at 1500 feet from crossing.

« Topographic (ground surface) survey of floodplain limits for use in developing
flood elevation analysis.

o Survey structure openings immediately upstream and downstream of proposed
crossing. .

TASK 2 Civil Design —~ JSD Professional Services, Inc, (JSD) will prepare the following
Civil Design Plans:

Cover Sheet

¢ Plan and Profile Sheets — JSD wiil prepare Plan and Profiles indicating pavement
types and dimensions. The plan will include representative layout dimensions in
sufficient detail for plan approval, permit application and construction, and will

N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3 » Waukesha, WI 53186 » Phone: 262.513.0666 # Fax: 262.513.1232
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101 » Verona, W1 53593 e Phone: 608.848.5060 » Fax: 608.848.2255
6520 67th Street » Kenasha, W 53142 « Phone: 262.925.8367 » Fax: 262,925.8362
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August 14, 2015
River Park Path

Page 2 of 5

TASK 3

TASK 4

TASK S

TASK 6

TASK7

include pavement types and thickness based on pavement design provided by
the geotechnical engineer of record. The plan will include location and details for
site signage.

Grading and Drainage Plan ~ A Grading and Drainage Plan will be prepared
including existing and proposed contours to a 1-foot Interval, direction of flow
arrows, and representative proposed spot grades to finished grade. Proposed
culvert/storm sewer design data will be indicated on this plan.

Erosion Control Plan — An Erosion Control Plan wifl be prepared showing design
erosion and sedimentation control measures in accordance with Wisconsin DNR
Technical Standards. Existing and proposed contours will be depicted indicating
surface elevation (1-foct interval).

Detail and Notes Sheets — General specification notes for pertinent sitework items
will be included on the Detail and Notes Sheet along with applicable construction
details. Pavement recommendations will be provided by the geotechnical
engineer of record.

Opinion of Probable Cost — JSD will develop one opinion of probable cost based
on the final design.

Sitework Specifications — Separate sitework specifications will be prepared for
pertinent work items. This item will be provided in pdf format for inclusion in the
Project Manual. Project Manual front-end documents will be provided by the
Client.

Structural Design Services (by subconsultant)

Refer to attached subconsultant proposal for detailed scope description.

Geotechnical Engineering Services (by subconsultant)

Refer to attached subconsultant proposal for detailed scope description.
Natural Resource Investigation (by subdonsultant[

Refer to attached subconsultant proposal for detailed scope description.

Ficodplain Analysis / Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis

Evaluate collected data and develop HEC-RAS model related to proposed floodplain
fil.

Produce design report detailing the resuits of the hydrologic / hydraulic analysis,
Submit design report to review authorities.

Two (2), revisions to design calculations / report based upon comments from
review authorities,

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP) — As required by the City of Franklin
Unified Development Crdinance (UDO), JSD will develop an NRPP depicting the
presence of, and any proposed disturbance to, any natural resource features
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August 14, 2015
River Park Path

Page 3 of 5

TASK 8

TASK 9

present on the subject site. A subconsultant will be engaged to determine
whether any protected natural resource features existing on the subject site,

Meeting Attendance - JSD will participate in the following meetings:

Project Team Meetings — JSD will attend six (6) project meetings at the City of
Frankiin. These meetings may consist of meetings with City staff or public
meetings (Environmental Commission, Plan -Commission, Common Council,
ete.).

Permit Applications (application fees not included) — The following permit
application submittals are anticipated:

Wisconsin DNR Notice of infent — JSD will prepare the Notice of Intent (NOI) to
be filed with the Wisconsin Depariment of Natural Resources (WDNR) for land
disturbances greater than 1-acre as required to cbtain Wisconsin Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) General Permit coverage. Permit fees
are not included.

City of Franklin Natural Resource: Special Exception (NRSE): JSD will prepare
and submit maps and plan materials to the City of Franklin for NRSE review and
approval related to floodplain fill and woodland removal. It is assumed that the
bridge will span the wetland fimits and that no wetland fill permit will be required.
Three public meetings are anticipated for this approval, and are included under

~ Task8.

TASK 10

Construction Administration

Pre-construction Meeting — JSD will participate in one (1) pre-construction
meeting.

Provide a maximum of 30 hours of general construction administration assistance
including; responses to bid questions, project meetings as required, shop drawing
review within this discipline, and periodic site visits for general compliance with
design.

SCHEDULE

JSD will work with the Client to establish a project schedule. Our workload is such that we
can begin work within 10 days of authorization to proceed.

GENERAL PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

1. It Is understood that the development plan will evolve as the project progresses, and
minor plan adjustments are expected over the course of the project. However,
addressing substantial changes to the layout, which impacts engineering design in
progress, shall be considered additional services and will be billed on a time and
materials basis in accordance with the aftached schedule of billing rates. Should plan
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August 14, 2015
River Park Path
Page 4 of &

2.

modifications fall into this category, JSD will nofify the Client prior to incorpprating
these modifications info the Civil Design.

Printing, plotting, reproduction costs, mileage, mailing, and distribution expenses are
considered a direct reimbursable expense.

The following items are not included in this scope of services or associated fee:

o Design of any off-site improvements,

o The design of stormwater facilities, inciuding but not imited to infiltration
basins, bio-retention facilities, and bioswales.

o Lighting design.

o Private utility locating services.

o Any services beyond those specifically discussed herein.

Drawings will be prepared in AutoCAD format.

The utility locations are limited to the public utilities based upon plans readily available
from the municipality and public underground utilities marked in the field by “Digger's
Hotline.” The Client will provide existing plans of other utilities on or serving the site
that are not located by “Digger's Hotline” and that otherwise cannot be located by a
reasonable visual observation of the property or of which the surveyor would have no
knowledge. The utilities are shown for informational purposes only and are not
guaranteed to be accurate or all-inclusive.

Survey fee is based on useable and accessible horizontal and vertical control existing
in the project area. The client will coordinate site access and notification of all
adjacent landowners involved in the project, if necessary. :

All fees including, but not limited to submittal, approval, review and recording fees will
be paid by the Client’‘Owner. :

JSD takes no responsibility for any underground structures or buried materials such
as foundations, wells, septic, holding tanks, utilities, hazardous materials, or any other
items that may exist on the property.

While JSD attempts to provide a cost effective approach to balance earthwork,
grading design is based on many factors, including safety, aesthetics, adjacent
properties and common engineering standard of care. Therefore no guarantee can
be made for a balanced site.

ESTIMATED FEE

Based on our understanding of the scope of services and the general project understanding,
we will perform the services for the following Lump Sum fees:

TASK 1 — TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY $ 28,500.00
TASK 2 — CIVIL. DESIGN $17,500.00
TASK 3 — STRUCTURAL DESIGN SERVICES $ 29,021.00
TASK 4 — GEOTECHNICAL DESIGN SERVICES $ 3,700.00

TASK 5 — NATURAL RESOURCE INVESTIGATION $ 3,000.00
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August 14, 2015
River Park Path
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TASK 6 — FLOODPLAIN / HYDROLOGY AND HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS  $ 6,500.00
TASK 7 — NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION PLAN $ 2,700.00
TASK 8 — MEETING ATTENDANCE $ 4,020.00
TASK 9 — PERMIT APPLICATIONS $ 3,500.00
TASK 10 - CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION $ 4,690.00
TASK 11 — REIMBURSABLES (ESTIMATE) $ 500.00

This cost estimate was developed based upon our understanding of the project as described
in this proposal. Expansion or changes in the scope of work, project phasing, performance
time, inadequate information, changes to layout or land use, or unanticipated site conditions
may require a modification of this amount. Revisions requested due to changes after design
has commenced are considered exira services. After submittal fo the municipality, JSD will
provide revisions based on review comments by the municipality pertaining to technical
discrepancies only. Any revisions requested due to jurisdictional review comments not
relating to technical discrepancies are considered extra services. JSD cannot guarantee
approval by any reviewing agencies. Adjustments to the fee for extra services will be via

Client Authorization on a time and materials basis.

As required by the Wisconsin construction lien law, claimant hereby notifies owner
that persons or companies performing, furnishing or procuring labor, setvices,
materials, plans or specifications for the construction on owner’s land may have lien
rights on owner’s land and buildings if not paid. Those entitled to lien rights, in
addition to the undersigned claimant, are those who contract directly with the owner
or those who give the owner notice within 60 days after they first perform, furnish or
procure labor, services, materials, plans or specifications for the construction.
Accordingly, owner probably will receive notices from those who perform, furnish or
procure labor, services, materials, plans, or specifications for the construction, and
should give a copy of each notice received to the mortgage lender, if any. Claimant
agrees to cooperate with the owner and the owner’s lender, if any, to see that all
potential lien claimants are duly paid.

If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign in the space provided on the attached
Agreement and scanfemail a copy back to us as your authorization to proceed.

Sincerely,
JSD Professional Services, Inc.

Justin L. Johnson, P.E,
Senior Project Engineer
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JSD Professional Services, Inc.

Standard Rate Schedule
For the Year 2015

' Madison Regional Office Milwaukee Regional Office
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101 N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Sulte 3
Verona, Wl 53583 Waukesha, Wi 53186
Kenosha Regional Office Fox Valley Regional Office
8520 67" Street 3215 W. Lawrence Street, Suite 6
Kenosha, Wi 53142 Appleton, WI 54814
Personnel
Staff Category . Hourly Rate
Principal, Assoclate $183.00
Senior Structural Project Consultant $163.00
Senior Project Consultant $157.00
Structural Enginsering Manager : ‘ $157.00
Senior Project Enginaer : $134.00
Project Consuttant $125.00
Senior Structural Engineer $124.00
Senior Planner $124.00
Senior Landscape Architect $122.00
Project Engineer $122.00
Construction Project Engineer $122.00
Senior Staff Engineer $108.00
Project Surveyor *$105.00
Senior Landscape Designer . - $105.00
Staff Structural Engineer $101.00
Staff Engineer $101.00
Survey Crew Chief $101.00
Landscape Deslgner $95.00
Senior Engineering Technician $00.00
Engineering Technician _ $84.00
Senior Survey Technician $84.00
Survey Technician $79.00
Office Support ‘ $74.00

Expert witness services, including trial preparation, depositions and court appearances will be charged at
4.6 times the above rates.

-Expenses

Direct expenses incurred on the client's behalf are charged at our cost plus 10%. Such items include, but
are not limited o, equipment rental, subsistence, printing and reproduction, transportation and travel
charges and any special equipment or fees unique fo the project. Professional subconsultant fees are
charged at our cost pius 15%, Automobile mileage will be charged at $0.75.

Invoices

Progress invoices shall be Issued monthly and shall be paid within thirty days of date of invoice. Balances
remalning unpaid after 60 days are subject fo a monthly finance charge of 1.6% (which is an annual rate of
18% per anhum) until pald. JSD reserves the right to stop work on any project that has past due Invoices
until outstanding balances are pald.

Effective to 12-31-2015
JAADMINISTRATIONRates\2015 Standard Rates.doc
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Malas Engineering LLC

Integrated Innovative Solutions and Excellence in Enginecring

August 13,2015

Justin L, Johnson, PE

Senior Project Engineer ‘ Proposal 1ID: ME 113
JSD Professional Services, Inc.

N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3

Waukesha, W1 53186

Ref: Sub-consultant Professional Engineering Service Proposal for the River Park Path Design
in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County.

Dear Mr. Johnson,

It is my pleasure to provide you this proposal for the River Park Path and Root River Tributary
Crossing design services. Per our site visit and earlier communications, the proposed Malas
Engineering LLC design services include:

¢ Administration/Coordination/Progress Meetings

¢ Field Inspection & Verification

e Assist in Utility & Agency Coordination including WDNR & FEMA

e Assist in Public Involvement & Project Presentation

s Provide bridge crossing utilizing a pre-fabricated bridge with substructure design.
Included: plans, specifications, and engineering estimate.

e Provide Project Q/A & hydraulic + Geometry Design Review

e Construction Administration (Meetings, RFI, CO, Shop Drawings Review, ete...)

The total effort for this proposed scope of work and services based on a lump-sum fee, Not to
Exceed, twenty nine thousand twenty one dollars and zero cents. ($29,021.00) The effort is
based on a single pre-fabricated bridge.

If you have any questions, please call me. We very much appreciate this opportunity and look
forward to continue working with you. Thank you.

Sincerely, .

. L ",/",f
w-—”‘f/7/// wbnd
Mahmoud fMac) N. Malas, PE

Senior Engineer/Principal Engineer

Attachment: Effort Workbook (separately)

W148N6912 TERRIWOOD DRIVE MENOMONEE FALLS, Wi 53051 (414) 870-3112
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I_ Information
PZ=22]'15 Build On

Engineering » Consulting » Testing

August 13, 2015

Mr. Justin Johnson

JSD Professional Services, Inc.
N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3
Waukesha, Wisconsin 53186

Re: Proposal for Geotechnical Services
Proposed River Park Path Bridge
Bridge and Approach Pavement
Franklin, WI
PSi Proposal No. 158769

Dear Mr. Johnson:

Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) is submitting this proposal to conduct a
geotechnical exploration for the proposed bridge in Franklin, Wisconsin. A summary of
the planned project, PSI's proposed scope of services, schedule and fee information are
provided in the following sections. Thank you for giving PSI| this opportunity to propose
our services.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

PSI| understands that the proposed project consists of construction of a new recreational
path bridge in River Park in Frankiin, Wisconsin. This proposal is based on the new
bridge consisting of a single span supported by abutments on piles or spread footings.

if any of the above information is inconsistent with the planned construction, PS| requests
that JSD Professional Services, Inc. contact us immediately and allow us to make any
necessary modifications o this proposal.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of PSI's services for this project will be to conduct one 60-foot deep soil boring at
the site and provide geotechnical design recommendations based upon the subsurface
conditions encountered. In general, foundation recommendations will be provided for the
proposed bridge replacement. In addition, recommendations for re-paving the approach
areas adjacent 1o the bridge will also be provided.

The borings are planned to be performed adjacent to the abutments of the existing bridge.
The borings will be completed to the planned depth or auger refusal, whichever is
shallower. The test borings will be performed with a truck-mounted, rotary drill rig using
hollow stem augers. Soil samples will be obtained at 2.5-foot increments to a depth of 10
feet, and at 5-foot intervals thereafter, employing split-barrel sampling procedures in

PS8l + 821 Corperate Court » Waukesha, Wisconsin 53189 « Phone 262-621-2125 « Fax 262-521-2471 + www.psiusa.com



Proposed River Park Path Bridge
Franklin, Wi

PSI Proposal No.: 159769
August 13, 2015
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general accordance with ASTM D-1586. The borings will be backfilled with bentonite and
the surfaces patched with cold patch asphalt upon completion.

in addition, it is requested that grainsize analysis be provided for every 2 foot interval for
the upper 20 feet of the boring to determine potential scour properties of these soils.

It is understood that the borings will be performed in an area that is off traveled roads. As
such, this proposal does not include any traffic control. If requested, PSI can provide
necessary traffic control in accordance with the MUTCD during completion of the borings.

Representative soil samples obtained during the fieid exploration program will be returned
to the laboratory for visual classification and a limited number of engineering properties
tests. The nature and extent of this laboratory testing program will be dependent upon the
subsurface conditions encountered during the field exploration program, and may include
testing of selected samples to evaluate the soils’ moisture content, plasticity, grain size,
unit weight and relative strength characteristics.

JSD Professional Services, Inc. understands that PSI's services under this proposal are
limited to geotechnical engineering and that PS| will have no responsibility to locate,
identify, evaluate, treat or otherwise consider or deal with hazardous materials. The
existence or discovery of hazardous materials will constitutes a changed condition under
this proposal.

Hazardous materials are defined in this proposal as any toxic substances, chemical,
pollutants or other materials, in whatever form or state, that are known or suspected fo
adversely affect the health and safety of humans or of animal or plant organisms, or which
are known or suspected to impair the environment in any way whatsoever.

PS! will perform its services consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised
by other professional engineers under similar circumstances at the time the services are
performed. No warranty, expressed or implied, is included or intended in this proposal.

REPORT

At the conclusion of PSI's field and laboratory work, one of our registered professional
engineers will prepare a Geotechnical.Exploration Report. The report will include:

« descriptions of the soil and groundwater conditions at the test boring locations;

« a summary of the laboratory test results (where applicable) as they relate to the
proposed site development;

« adiscussion of recommended foundation type and allowable soil bearing capacities;

e representative pavement design parameters for the pavement design including
material type (well or poorly sorted), frost index, soil support value, design group index,
Resilient Modulus, Mg, CBR and subgrade reaction modulus, k;
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e site preparation information including placement and compaction of structural fill,
control of groundwater, and improvement of unstable soil,

« information relating to other observed geotechnical conditions that couid impact the
proposed project;

One electronic copy of the report will be provided. Hard copies can be provided upon
request. PSI will address any comments received regarding the report.

SCHEDULE

PS| is prepared to begin work on this project after receiving authorization to proceed.
Based on favorable weather conditions, the field work will take 1 day to complete.
Preliminary results would be available within about 5 days of field work completion. The
final report will be completed in about 15 days after field work is completed.

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

Some damage to ground surface may result from the drilling operations near the work
areas and along ingress/egress pathways. PSI will attempt to minimize such damage, but
no restoration other than backfilling the soil borings and patching the surface with asphalt
patch is included. Soil spoils will be cleaned up and removed from the project as needed.
The borings will be backfilled to ground surface once the borehole has been completed.
Due to the self-consolidation of hole backfill, it is likely that the hole will settle overtime,
especially after rain events.

All of the borings will be located within the public right of way. As such, it is standard and
industry practice to proceed with the understanding that utilities in the area of this project
are entirely publicly owned and operated. PSI will contact Diggers Hotline for public utility
clearance prior to the start of drilling activities. PSI will also contact the local municipality
to discuss if any additional utilities, not covered by Digger's Hotline are located within the
roadway. If the local municipality identifies that additional utility lines may be present, PSI
will request an amendment to retain a private utility locating company to locate the utilities
within 10 feet of the boring locations, If additional fees are required, PSI will contact you
prior to implementation for approval.

FEES

it is proposed that the fee for performance of the outlined scope of services be charged on
a Lump Sum Basis. Based on the scope of services outlined above, the total fee will be
$3,654.00. Additional drilling footage, if necessary, will be charged at $18 per foot. Any
additional drilling will be authorized prior to performance. If private utility locating was
required an additional $400.00 would apply.

Boring, sampling and testing requirements are a function of the subsurface conditions.
The cost is based on adequate bearing materials being encountered within the proposed
boring depths. Shouid conditions be encountered which require additional exploration,
PS! will notify JSD Professional Services, Inc. to discuss modifying the outlined scope of
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work. Additional work beyond the estimated fee will not be performed without
authorization.

PS| appreciates the opportunity to offer our services and look forward to working with you.
Please call with any questions, or if PSI can be of additional service.

Respectfully submitted,

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES, INC.

Electronic Copy Electronic Copy
Ted A Cera, P.E. Paul J. Koszarek, P.E.
Department Manager District Manager

Geotechnical Services

Attachments: Proposal Acceptance
General Conditions
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Franklin, W

PS| Proposal No.: 159769
August 13, 2015

Page 5 of 6
PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE:
AGREED TO, THIS DAY OF , 2014.
BY (please print):
TITLE:
COMPANY:
SIGNATURE:
PROJECT INFORMATION:
1. Project Name:
2. Project Location: .
3. Your Job No: Purchase Order No.:
4. Project Manager: Telephone No.:
5. Site Contact: Telephone No.:
6. Number and Distribution of Reports:
( ) Copies To: ( ) Copies To:
Attn: Aftn:
{ )} Copies To: ( ) Copies To:
Attn: . Atin:

7. Invoicing Address:

Atin:

8. Other Pertinent Information Or Previous Subsurface Information Available:
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GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. PARTIES AND 5COPE OF WORK: Professional Service Industdies Inc. (“PSI") shail Include sald com pany or its particwtar division, subsidiary oraffilate performing the work “Work” means
the specific service to be performed hy FATas sei forth in PSts proposal, Clieal’s acoeptarice thoreof and these General Conditons. Addidonal wadk ardered by Client shall also be snhject 1o these
Goneral Conditions. “Client” refers fo the person or business entily omdering the work to be done by PSL, IF Client iz ordesing Uie work on belaif of another, Client reprosents and wamants thal
it i the duly authorized agent of sid parfy for the purpose of ordering and directing said work. Unfess otherwiso stated in writing, Clleat stsnmes sole responsitility for determining whether the
quantity and the nature of Gie work orsdered by the clieat is adequate and suffiient far Climet's intended purpose, Clisol shafl communisafe these Gemaral Conditions 1o each and every third gary
to whom Llient Lansmits any pari of PS)"s work, PSI ehal} have oo duty or obligation o any third party greator than that set {osth in PSI’s proposal, (lient's aceoptance tiereol and these General
Conditions. The erdering of work from ESL, or the mliance on any of PSI's work, shall eonsfibity secoplancs of the ierms of PSI's proposal and these General Conditions, rogardiess of the terns
of any subsequently issued document.

2, THSTR AND INSPECTIONS: Client shall cause all tests and inspections of (he site, malerals and work performed by P35I or others to be mely and properly performed in accordance with
the plans. spovifications and contragt d ts and FS1s tations. No clsims lor loss, damage or injory shall be'brought ngainst BSI by Client or any third party unless all tosts and
inspections have been so performed and unless PS1's eeommendations have beea foltowed. Client agrees o indemnify, defend and hold PSI, is officers, employees aod agents hammiess from
any and all oleinms, suits, losses, costs and expenses, including, bul oot limited m, count costs and reasonable attorey s Fees in the event that all such tests and Inspections are not so performed or
PSl's recommendalions are not so fallowed.

3. PREVAILING WAGES: This proposal specifically exciudes compliance with any project tabor agreement, lsbor agresiment, or other umien o apprenticsship requi ts. In adiditi
unlast axplicitly agroed to in the body of this propossl, this proposnl speci beally exdludes complianee with any stte of federai prevailing wage lnw or iated requiremonts, inciuding the
Cavis Bacon Act. The to the professional nature of ts services PSLis generally exempt {rom the Davis Bacon Actand ather prevailing wage schemes. 1t is agreed that av applicable provailing
wage olassification or wage rate has been provided to PSL, and that all wages and cost esfinmates contined herein ar based solely upon standard, non--prevaiiing wage rates, Should it Jater be
determined by the Owner or any applicable ageney that in faot prevaifing waps applies, then it is agreed that the contract value of this agreement chall be equitably adljusied to acoount for such
chamgod cirsumstanee, These exdusions shall survive the completion of the prject and shall be merged into any subequentt ¢t dl between the parties, regardioss of the terms of
such agr Client will reimb defend, indemnify and fold harmless PST from snd apainst 2ny fiability resulting from a subsequent detorm ination that prevailing wige repulations cover
tie Project, including all costy, fines and attomey’s foes.

4. SCHRDULING OF WORK: The services el forth in PST's propossl and Qlienl's aoveptance will be aceomplished by ESL persounel at the prices quoted. IF P8 js required to delap
commencament af the wodk or if, upon embarking wpon jts work, PSLis mquired to stop or mtermpt the progrom of s wockas a sesult of chatiges in the seope of the work requestod by Client, to
fullil the requirsments of thind paries, interuptions ia the progss of construclion, or othor ruse byyond fhe dinve! reasouable conirol of PSI, additional charges will be applicable and payable
by Client.

&, ACCESS TO STTE: Clieut wili amangs aad provide such access lo the sits and work avis necessary for PR to perforim the work. PEL shall mie ] and p Hons D mininize
damage t he sie a0d any improvements iocated thereon as the resultal ils work or the use of its equipmnent

£, CLIENT'S DUTY TO NOTIFY ENGINEER: Clisat warrans that it has advised P31 of any knows or ruspecied hazandous materials, utility lines and polhriants ot sy site at which PS5l iy io
do work, and unless PST iras tssuned in writing the responsibility of focating subsurfage objects, strusturs, lines or conduits, Client agnees to defend, indemnify and ssve FEL harmless from sl
chaims, suits, fossen, cosls and expenses, including reasonable atarmey's fees as a resull of persoual iajury, death orpraperty damage occurring wilh sespeat to PST's performance of its work and
romutting te or cansed by contact with subsurfacs or Lutent ebjects, structures, lines or conduits where the aclual or potential presence snd Incation thereof were pot revealed to PEI by Client.

4 RESPONSIBILITY; PSI's work shall not include determining, supervisisg or implementing the means, methods, echniguss, sequences or procedures of censlruction. Pl dall not be
respansbie for evalnating, repering or affacting job conditions concerning heulth, saluty or wetfars. PSI's work or failure to perform same shall not in any way excuse agy conruclor, subeomr
actor or sapptier Froms performanee of its work in aceordanes with the conlwact dooumsnls. Client azress that il shall require submsgation vo be weived against PST und for P51 1o by udded asan

Additional Insured en all pelicies of lnsurance, including any policies required of Client's ar covering BBy ion or develop { activities to be pedformed on
thio project dte. PSI bus no dght oz duty & stop die vontractor's wark.
8. SAMPLE DISPOSAL: Test speci wil! be 4k d i liabsly mpaa completion of the test. All drilling sanapies will be disposed sixty (60) days afier submission of P5T's report.

i Y

9, PAYMENT, The quuntities und fees provided in (s propusad aro PETs eslimate based on information provided by Clientund PSI's experience on similar projecis, The actnal total amoint due
1 PSI shal] be based on the actual final quantities pruvided by PSLat te unit ries provided hemin. Whers Ciient directs or requests addilional werk beyand the contmet pries it will be deomed
a change order and FAL will be paid acconting to the fee schedule. Client shall he invaicet] onee eack manth far work pesformed Guring the procsding peciod. Client agrees to pay each invoice
within thicty (30} days of jts receipt. Client further agress to pay interest on ail amonnis irvoiced and not paid or objected to for valid cause in wriling within said thirty (30} day period 2t the rate
of sighiven {18} percant per anmum (or the muxinum inieresh mte pormitted undar applicable law), snlil paid. Clientagrees Lo may P51’ ¢easiof collection of all amounts due end npaid after thiry
{30} days, incliding court costs and reusunable attomey’s-fees. PRI shall not be bourd by any provision gr agresment sexquining or providing for aibilraton of disputes or controversies arising
out of (i agreement, pny provisian wherein PSI waives ny rights to a mechanies* Tien, or any provison conditioning P3I's right 1o recerve payment for its work upan paymeilt to Client by any
third paity. These General Conditions are notice, where required, that PSLsbiall fifea lien whenever necessasy ta collect past dus amounts, Faikire to make paymenl. within 30 days of invoice shall
conslitme & release of PSI from any and all chaims which Client may have, whether in 1on, contracl or oliwerwite, and whether known or unknowa al the tine.

10. ALLOCATION OF RISK: CLIFNT AGREES THAT PSI'S SERVICES WILL NOISUBJECT PSI'S INDIVIDUAL EMFLOYEES, CIUCERS OR DIRECTORS TO ANY PERSOMAL
1IABILTTY, AND THAT NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION, OF THIS AGREEMENT, CLIBNT ACGRRESE THAT ITS SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY SHALL BETO
DIRECT OR ASSERT ANY CLADM, DEMANI2 GR SUTT.ONLY AGAINST PSL STATEMENTS MADE IN PSI REPORTS ARE CPINIONS BASED UPON ENGINEERING JUDCRYIEENT
AND ARE NOT I BE CONSTRUED AS REPRESENTATIONS QF FACT,

SHOULD PSI OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYERS BE FOUND TO. HAVE BHEN NEGLIGENT IN THE FERFIRMANCE OF T8 WORK, .CGR TQ HAYE MADE AND BREACHED ANY
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY, REFRESENTATICN OR CONTRACT, CLIENT, ALL PARTIES SLAIMBNG THROUGH CLIENT AND ALL BARTIRS CLATMING TO HAYE DN
ANY WAY RELJED UPON PSS WORK AGRER THAT THE MAXTMUM AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF THE LIABILITY OF P§], TS OFFICERS, EMPLOYERS AND AGENTS SHALL
BE LIMITED'TD 525,000,040 OR LHE TOTAL AMOUNT OF THE FEE PAIDTO P31 FORTIS WORK PERFORMED ON THE PROJECT, WHICHEY ER AMOUNT 15 GREATER. IN'THE
EVENT CLIENT T8 UNWILLING DR UNABLE T4 LIMPT PSI'S LTABILITY IN ACCORDANCE WITHT THE PROVISIONS SET FORTH IN THIS PARACGRAPH, CLIENT MAY, UPON
WRITTEN REQURST (3 £1 JENT RECEIVED WITHIN FIVE DAY'S OF CLIENT 'S ACCEFTANCE HEREOF, TNCREASE THE LIMIT OF PSI'S LIABILITY 70 $230,000.00 OR THE
AMOUNT OF B31'S FEE PAIDTO PSTEQR I8 WORK ONTHE PROIBCT, WEICEEVER IS THE GREATER, BY AGREEING TO PAY P51 A SUMBQUIVALENT TO ANADDITIONAL
AMOUNT OF 5% (F THE TOTAL FBE 'O BE CHARCGED FOR PSI'S SERVICES. THIS CHARGE 15 NOTTO BE CONSTRUBD AS BEING A CHARGE FOR INSURANCE OF ANY
TYFE, BUT I INCREASED CONSIDERATION POR THE GREATER LIARILITY INVOLVED. IN ANY EVENT, ATTORNEY'S FEES EXTENDED BY PS] IN CONNE(TION WITH
ANY CLATM SHALL REDUCE THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE, AND ONLY GNE SUCH AMOUNT WILLAFELY TC) ANY PROJECT. .

NG ACTION OR CLAIM, WHETHER PN TORE CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE, MAY BE BROUGHT AGAINST P31, ARISING FROM CR RELATEDTO PAI'§ WCRE, MORE THAN
TWO YEARS AFTER THE CESSATION OF PSI°S WORK HEREUNDER, REGARDLESS (OF THE DATE ORDISCOVERY OF $UCH (LAIM.

11, INDEMNITY: Subject to the above (initations, PS[ agreos ot io defend hul to indemnify and hold Cliem barntess from and agaiust &y and alt claims, suils, costs and expenses inciuding
reasonabls akiomey s fees and cotrt costs 1o the exteatarsing ovtol 151 nogligence as finally dotermined by a courtoflaw, Client shiall provide the same profeetion tothe axtent of its nogligence.
In the event that Client or Clieat’s principal shall bring usty suit, cavse ol action, elsim or sounteroiaim against PSE, the Clieut aud the party injtuling such aetion shall pay to PSI dhe cowls and
eponsas incurred by PSI to investigats, answer and defind it inetuding reasennble attomey’s aud witness fees and conrt costs Lo the extent hat PSI shall prevail in sneb suit,

2, TRRMINATION: This Agreement may be ternripatod by sither party wpon seven days’ prior written notice, In the event of termination, P51 shail be compensated by Client for all sorvices
performed vp Io and lnduding the teminalion dat, including reimbursable oxpenses.

13. EMPLOYEES/WITNESS FEAS: PST's employeas shall ot be retained ay vxporl wineyses exvept by mpurale, writhen agreement. Cliont agross to pay PSI's Tegal expusises, adminiswaiive
cost and fees purauzul i FAD1's thed eurrent fee schedule for P51 1o respond Lo any sibpoena. Fora period of one year after the cotpletion of any work performed under this agrement, Client
agress not fo wlicit, recruil, orhire wy BS) employee or persen who has been employed by PSI within tho previous Lwelve months. I the event Client desires to hire such ar individuval, Client
aprees that it shall sok the written consent of PSL, and shall pay 'S an amount equal o one-haif of tize employe’s annvalized saiary, without PS1 waivisg other mmedies it may have.

13, FIDUCIARY: PSlis nota finaneial advisor, does not provide fisnneial adviee or analysis of any kind, and notbing in our ;eports can ereate.a fduciary telationship between P31 and any other

party.

15, CHOICH OF LAW AND EXCLUSIVE VENUE: All cinims or disputes arising or rélating to fis agreement shall be gaverned by, construed, and enforeed in accorance with the laws of
{hinois, The exclusve venng For all acions or p dings arising in jan with this ag shall be either the Cirenit Court in TnPags County, lilinais, ar the Fedeml Court for the
Northem Distriet of Niinois.

16. PROVISIONS SEVERADLE: The parties have ontered Ino this agreement in good faith, and 1t is the spesifis infent of e paries that the tsrms of thess General Conditions be enforced as
wiitten. [n the evontany of e provisions of these Goneral Conditions should be found fo be uuenforceable, it shall be stricken snd the remaining provisions shali be saforceable,

7. ENTTRE AGREEMENT: This ag i the setire and ding of the parties, and there ase 1o feprosentations, warmmbes or underinkings srade othar than as set forth heyein.
Thir ng | may be ded, modified or ermingted only in writing, sgaed by each of the partizs hemlo,
B-900-11 (11} 414
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R A Smith National
/ Beyond Surveyi?

and Engineering

August 14" 2015

Mr. Justin Johnson

JSD Professional Services, Inc

N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3
Brookfield, W1 53186

Re: Proposal for Wetland Delineation & Tree Survey Services —City of Franklin Pathway, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, WI

Dear Mr. Johnson,

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a quotation for professional services. The contents of this proposal
letter spell out the Scope of Services to be provided, the proposed Completion Schedule and the Professional
Fees.

PROJECT NAME: City of Franklin Pathway, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, W1
L DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED:
A) Wetland Delineation and Report Submittal

We propose to delineate the location and extent of wetland boundaries along the pathway route per the
attached aerial photo. During the field study, wetland areas will be identified and their boundaries
delineated using the Routine On-Site Determination Method as defined in the 1987 Corps of Engineers
Wetland Delineation Manual and in the recent Midwest Regional Supplement, and will be performed in
accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Assyrance program requirements.
The delineation technique uses a multi-parameter approach, which requires evidence of wetland
hydrology, hydric soils, and hydrophytic vegetation, R.A, Smith National, Inc. (RASN) ecologists will
also consider topographic conditions and use professional judgment in performing the work. The
boundaries of areas meeting wetland criteria will be flagged in the field and surveyed by JSD surveyors.
The findings will be documented in a final wetland delineation report. Data sheets, a wetland boundary
map, a soils map, aerial photographs, a Wisconsin Wetland Inventory map, and color copies of
photographs will be included in the report.

A draft copy of the report will be sent to you to review prior to submittal to the agencies. A copy
of the final report will be issued to you, the WDNR, and the US Army Corps of Engineers. The
US Army Corps will review the report and concur with the delineation.

B) Tree Survey

We will identify every tree approximately 3” in DBH (diameter at breast height) or greater within the
project route. Each tree will be flagged and numbered using surveyor’s ribbon. We will also provide a
determination as to whether the trees fall within young or mature woodland as defined by the City’s UDO
{Unified Development Ordinance).

Deliver excellence, vision, and responsive service to our clients,

16745 W, Bluemound Rd., Svite 200 « Brookfield, W1 53005 « (262) 781-1000 « Fax {262} 781-8466
Appleton, WI » Orange, CA « Pittsburgh, PA » rasmithnational.com
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R.A Smith National

Mr. Justin Johnson
Page 2 / August 14th, 2015

1I. COMPLETION SCHEDULE:

RASN would begin delincation fieldwork for this project within three weeks following receipt of a signed
agreement, The delineation report will be submitted for your review within five wecks after completion
of the delineation fieldwork. At the same time, we will be working with you to make sure that the
wetland boundaries and trees are properly depicted on the survey drawings.

I11. PROFESSIONAL FEES:

The above-described services will be provided for a time and expense fee as shown below. Fees will be
invoiced monthly on a percent complete basis,

Task Description Fee
A Wetland Delineation & Report $2.000
B Tree Survey $1,000

Fees utilize RASN’s standard Professional Liability Insurance limits of $2,000,000 for a period of 3 years
from award of contract. Usual and customary expenses such as mileage, equipment usage, postage,
delivery, and printing are included in the above fees.

As your project progresses, additional work beyond the scope of this agreement may be required. Please
initial below how you would like us to proceed with such work:

Time is critical. Proceed with any additional work and notify me with the details as
soon as possible. 1 understand that this work will be performed on an hourly, time-
and-material basis,

Contact me to obtain my verbal authorization and to discuss fees prior to performing
any additional work. 1understand that this could delay the progress of my project.

Contact me to obtain my written authorization and to discuss fees prior to
performing any additional work. I understand that this could delay the progress of
my project.

The attached Agreement for Consulting Engineering Services is hereby made part of this Proposal. If there are
any questions concerning those, or the scope of work as presented, please contact us. To authorize R.A. Smith
National, Inc. to proceed, please sign and return the entire document to our office.

We look forward to a very successful project!

Sincerely,
R.A. Smith National, Inc,

Ao ok

Heather Patti, PWS
Lead Ecelogist/Project Manager
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Mr. Justin Johnson
Page 3/ August 14th, 2015

Enclosures

R_A Smith National
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R.A Smith National

STANDARD GENERAL CONTRACT TERMS
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1, All of the work described herein shafl be compieted in accordance with
generally and currently accepted engineering and surveying principals and practices.

2. Unless otherwise specifically included in the proposal, PROFESSIONAL’S
scope of work shall not include geotechnical or environmental audits for the
identification of hazardous wastes, wetlands, floodpiains or any other structural or
environmental qualities of land or ar. It is undersfood thet the Scope and the
Completion Schedule defined in the Proposal are based on the information provided
by the CLIENT, Verification of the accuracy and completeness of any information
provided by others is beyond the scope of this agreemen{,  Therefore,
PROFESSIONAL cannot be held responsibie for any design or construction
problems resulting from the use of this information.

3. PROFESSIONAL strongly recommends that a geotechnical ENGINEER be
engaged in the preliminary phases of the work 1o conduct field investigations, and
analysis and prepare a report on the soils conditions,

4. PROFESSIONAL shall not be responsibie for the means, methods,
techniques, Sequences or procedures of construction selected by the Contracior of
CLIENT, or the safety precautions and programs incident to the work of the
Contractar, nor shalt he be responsible for the failure of the Contractor to perform
the construction work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

5. All original papers, electronic files, and documents, and copies thereof,
produced as a result of this contract shall remain the property of the
PROFESSIONAL.

6. In the event all or any portion of the work prepared or partially prepared by
the PROFESSIONAL is suspended, abandoned, ar terminated, the CLIENT shall
pay the PROFESSIONAL all fees, charges and expenses incurred to date.
Professionaf may suspend or terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) days written
notice if the CLIENT fails o substantially perform in accordance with this
Agreement, Fatlure to make payments in accordance herewith shall constitute
substantial nonperformance.

7. PROFESSIONAL cannot be held responsible for project schedule delays
caused by weather, violence, acts of God, and public agencies or private businesses
over which it has no controj, PROFESSIONAL shall act only as an advisor in all
governmental relations. Such delays as caused by said occurrences, if not solely the
result of PROFESSIONAL'S failure to meet submittal deadlines, may result in
adjustments to said schedules and estimates/fees,

8 All electronic files transferred to CLIENT or his DESIGNEE by
PROFESSICONAL are provided solely for the convenience of the CLIENT and are
warranted only to the extent that they conform to the original document(s) produced
by PROFESSIONAL. Al electronic file(s) are transmitted in frust for the sole use
of the CLIENT and his DESIGNEE and acceptance constitutes assumption of
responsibility for its use and safekeeping. Any use by third parties shall be at the sole
risk of the CLIENT. Any alterations to or tampering with the files shall constitute
the asreement of the CLIENT io releass, defend and hold hamless
PROFESSIONAL from all claims and causes of action by said CLIENT and third
parties.

9. Payment for invoices is due upon receipt; amounts outstanding after 30
days from the date of invoice will be considered delinquent and subject fo a service
charge at the rate of 1% compounded monthly. Invoices will usually be sent
monthly for work performed during the previous month. CLIENT understands,
and agrees to pay for all services rendered regardless of CLIENT s ability or
inability to proceed with the project for any reason, gain govermnmental approvals
or permits, or secure financing for the project. The CLIENT shall provide
PROFESSIONAL with a clear, written statement within twenty (20} days of the
date of the inveice of any objections to the invoice, Failure to provide such a
written statement shall constitute acceptance of the invoice as submitted.
PROFESSIONAL reserves the right to immediately suspend work and/or
terminate this agreement due to lack of timely payment of uncontested invoices by
CLIENT.

The CLIENT further agrees to pay PROFESSIONAL any and all expenses
incurted in recovering any delinquent amounts due, including attorney’s fees and
COART COSES,

10.  The CLIENT agrees to limit PROFESSIONAL, by its agents or employees,
total liability to the CLIENT and to all Construction Contracters and Subcontractors
on the Project, due to PROFESSIONAL’S professional negligent acts, errors,
omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty and for any and
all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim expenses arising out of this
Agreement from any cause of causes, such that the total agpregate liability of
PROFESSIONAL fo those named shall not exceed the percentage share that
PROFESSIONAL’S negligence bsars to the total negligence of ali negligent
entities and individuals, and shatl not exceed Fifty Thousand Dellars ($50,000.00)
or the total fee for services rendered under this Agreement, whichever is less.

11.  Baoth parties agree that all disputes, including, but not limited to errors,
liability, claims for services and fees, expenses, losses, etc,, shall, at the sole and
exclusive option of PROFESSIONAL, be submitted for nen-binding mediation, a
prerequisite to further legal proceedings, PROFESSIONAL shall have the sole and
exclusive right to choose the mediator. Any fees and/or expenses charged by the
mediator shall be shared equally between PROFESSIONAL and CLIENT.

12, Nothing contained in this Agrecment shall create a contractual relationship
with or & cause of action in favor of a third party against either the CLIENT or the
PROFESSIONAL. The PROFESSIONAL’S services under this Agreement are
being performed solely for the CLIENT'S benefit, and no other entity shall have any
claim against the PROFESSIONAL because of this Agreement or the performance
or nonperformance of services hereunder. The CLIENT agrees to include & provision
in all contracts with contractors and other entitles involved in this project fo carry out
the intent of this paragraph.

13. ASREQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN LIEN LAW, PROFESSIONAL
HEREBY NOTIFIES CLIENT THAT PERSONS OR COMPANIES
FURNISHING LABOR FOR ENGINEERING OR SURYEYING FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION ON OWNER'S LAND, MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS ON
OWNER'’S LAND AND BUILDING IF NOT PAID. THOSE ENTITLED TO
LIEN RIGHTS, IN ADDITION TO THE UNDERSIGNED, ARE THOSE
WHO GIVE THE CLIENT NOTICE WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THEY
FIRST FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION.
ACCORDINGLY, CLIENT PROBABLY WILL RECEIVE NOTICES FROM
THOSE WHQO FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE
SURVEYING OR ENGINEERING SERVICES, AND SHOULD GIVE A
COPY OF EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO THE OWNER AND
MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY. PROFESSIONAL AGREES TO
COOPERATE WITH THE CLIENT AND THE CLIENT'S LENDER, iF
ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN CLAIMANTS ARE DULY
PAID, IF APPLICABLE.

HARRREEE
R.A. Smith Nationai, Inc,
16745 West Bluemound Road, Suite 200
Broolfield, WI 53005
Heather Patti, PWS
Ecologist/Project Manager

e ke

Date: August 14, 2015

PROFESSIONAL

PROJECT: Franklin Pathway Wetland Delineation & Tree Survey,
Frankiin, W1

The above and foregoing proposal is hereby aceepted and
PROFESSIONAL is authorized to proceed with the work,

ISD Professional Services, Inc
N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3
Brookfield, W1 53186
CLIENT

By:

CLIENT and R.A. Smith National., In¢, agree that digital and electronicaily
reproduced signatures such as by facsimile transmission or email are valid for
execulion or amendment of this Agreement and that electronic
transmission/facsimile is an muthorized form of hotice to proceed,

Printed Name:

Title: Date:
@2011 R.A, SMITH NATIONAL, INC,
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AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of August, 2015, between the
City of Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafier “CLIENT”)
and JSD Professional Services, Inc, (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR”), whose principal place of
‘business is N22 W22931 Nancys Court, Suite 3, Waukesha, Wisconsin.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal
services contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the
services of the CONTRACTOR 1o provide consultation with respect to professional surveying
and engineering design services; '

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these prémises and the following mufual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

A, This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR,

"1,  BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A, CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for professional surveying
and engineering design services, as described in CONTRACTOR’s proposal
to CLIENT dated August 14, 2015, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as
Attachment A,

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT’s professional representative in
matters to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ
the services of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary
by CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following
approval by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing
services hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to,
CONTRACTOR and not of CLIENT, All obligations under the Federal
Insurance Contribution Act (FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act
(FUTA), and income tax withholding are the responsibility of
CONTRACTOR as omployer, CLIENT wunderstands that express
AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR and its employees
regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

Page-1
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D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of
performance of any Tesultant.- AGREEMENT, including extensions,
modifications, or additions thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the
conclusion of such activity, the parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for
employment any technical or professional employees of the other without the
prior written approval of the other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, at our standard billing rates with a not-to-exceed
budget of $103,631, subject to the terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees 1o pay
CONTRACTOR’s invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved
work,

B. Total price will not exceed bﬁdget of $103,631. For services rendered,
monthly invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of
work completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses
without written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above
that described in the original AGREEMENT.

D, Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within
thirty (30) days of receiving CLIENT’s review. This subsection shall not be
construed to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to

CLIENT,
T, MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A, CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.,
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall
submit a “Change Order Request Form” to CLIENT for authorization and
notice to proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such
actual changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for
adjustments hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-
five (45) days after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from

CLIENT.
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IV, ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A, Justin L. Jobnson, P.E. will coordinate the work of the CONTRACTOR, and
be solely responsible for communication within the CLIENT’s organization as
related to all issues originating under this AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all gvailable information
: concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Justin L,
Johnson, P.E. CONTRACTOR’s Project Manager and other key providers of
the Basic Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only with the
consent of CLIENT,

V. TERMINATION

A, This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience,
for any or no Teason, upon wriilen notice fo CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30)
days written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR
shall be entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved wp to the date of termination,
except that no amount shall be payable for. any losses of revenue or profit
from any source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but
not Jimited 1o, other actual or potential agreements for services with other

parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reasom,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver o CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining
in any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated.
Such material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or
in process. CLIENT shalt hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work
that is incomplete due to early termination,

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this
section are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or appearing in amy other article of this
AGREEMENT.,

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage
with an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A, Limit of General/Commercial Liability $2,000,000
B. Automobile Liability: Bodily Injury/Property Damage . . $1,000,000
C'. - Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile Liability ~ $2,000,000

Page-3
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D, Worker’s Compensation and Employers’® Liability $500,000

E.

Professional Liability $1,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a
suitable statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which
shall specify that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior
notice to CLIENT, and naming CLIENT as an additional insured for General Liability.

VIL INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A,

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT’S officers, direciors, partners, and employees from
and against costs, losses, and damages (including but not Hmited to reasonable
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and
reasonable court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by
the negligent acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’S officers,
directors, partners, employees, and consultants in the petformance of
CONTRACTOR’S services under this AGREEMENT.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT shall indemnify and hold
harmiess CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR’S officers, directors, partners,
employees, and consyltants from and against costs, losses, and damages
(including but not limited to reasonable fees and charges of engineers, architects,
attorneys, and other professionals, and Teascnable court or arbitration or other
dispute Tesolution costs) caused solely by the negligent acts or omissions of
CLIENT or CLIENT’S officers, directors, pariners, employees, and consultants
with respect to this AGREEMENT, :

‘To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR’S total Hability to

CLIENT and anyone claiming by, through, or under CLIENT for any injuries,
losses, damages and expenses caused in part by the negligence of
CONTRACTOR and in part by the negligence of CLIENT or any other negligent
entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage share that CONTRACTOR’S
negligence bears to the total negligence of CLIENT, CONTRACTOR, and all
other negligent entities and individuals.

In addition to the indemnity provided under Paragraph VILB, and to the fullest
extent permitted by law, CLIENT shall indemnify and hold harmiess
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’S officers, directors, partners, employees,
and consultants from and against injuries, losses, damages and expenses
(including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects,
attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbifration or other disputes
resolution costs) caused by, arising out of, or resulting from an unexpected
Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that (i) any such injuries, losses,
damages and expenses is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death,
or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use
resulting therefrom, and (if) nothing in this Paragraph shall obligate CLIENT to
indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that
individual or entity’s own negligence or willful misconduct.

Page-4
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Vil TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed as of

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of
Wisconsin, The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit

Court for Milwaukee County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such
litigation, including reasonable attorney foes,

X. RECORDS RETENTION
CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of

this AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be
made available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

ACITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN J SD? SIO s, INC.,
BY: Y ' ;
/ 7 v

PRINT NAME: PRINT NAME: Richard K *Wagner, P.E.

TITLE: TITLE: Executive Vice President/CQO

DATE: DaTE: &) // 4// S
‘ /7

BY:

PRINT NAME:

TITLE:

DATE:

Page-5
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RIVER PARK NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING
Thursday October 22, 2015 @ 6:30 pm

Community Room @ Franklin City Hall (9229 W. Loomis Road)

Sign In Sheet

Name Address Telephone/Email

%\&! Meczidsics Commul Ty MNbR- et 315~ 31571

Tim Ovaaww&e Resident TovermoyerQhetmsl
/S,m; Croft Vs et 3973 Lok 414520~ 2034 "
Kim Mueller R34S o Presene G Yt~ 235 30 p -
(hvis Mugller ) misterzmusller @ grmif o
Orr{m Somwal4- @N}%S-uozt{
QAM me ___sS2%w Ajves ?M};S o) G SBo- Le¥2-
FARIDA #HOSshrn  sHll W. Preserve c4 i~ 235~4032

Mgl Yk 0 0
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Comment To Be Forwarded to Common Council
RIVER PARK NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING Thursday October 22, 2015 @ 6:30 pm

Name Address Telephone/Email
VARINA HESSAIN Bl ). PRESARVA CT. H4-22% -

Comment

TM@. fDVf&?_,:ﬁé_ PI.::Q:LQ S A Veal— | 1]
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Comment To Be Forwarded to Common Council
RIVER PARK NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING Thursday October 22, 2015 @ 6:30 pm

Name Address Telephone/Email
Kim Mweller 625 wleserve Ot YI{-2%5- 205

Comment
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

Yy 11/03/2015

RESOLUTION TO AWARD RIVER PARK TRAIL

REPORTS & DESIGN u I'ZMZ:TUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS T
BACKGROUND

Tn 2007, the developer of River Park Addition No. 2 dedicated a 20-foot easement to the City of Franklin
(Resolution 2007-6298) for the construction of a pedestrian and bicycle path from W. River Park Court,
crossing East Branch of Root River, and through an outlot to South River Lane (site map attached).

Previous efforts of constructing the trail did bring some opposition. Opposition primarily came {rom residents
along S. 56" Street and W, River Park Court. It is proposed that at this time, the trail only extend from the cul-
de-sac on W. River Park Court to the drainage outlot on River Lane. Staff has discussed this project scope
with Alderman Doug Schmidt regarding the need for this trail.

On August 18, 2015, Common Council considered engineering design for this project but wanted to hold any
decision until a meeting with residents could occur to solicit input. With the cooperation of the River Park
Homeowners Association, Alderman Schmidt and Staff were able to meet with interested homeowners on
October 22.

ANALYSIS

Overall, the residents and homeowners association were happy to hear of the project. The positive written
omments are attached to this council action, Generally, they think that this is a great idea, there is a value in
the trail and bridge, and they have been waiting for it since they purchased their homes.

There were some understandable concerns from the last two residents on the south side of W. River Park court
where the trail would start. One resident with concerns stated he wanted to email the comments to Staff but to
date, none have been received. Generally, concerns were the following:

e Allowing unrestricted access to people to a current quiet cul-de-sac. At the meeting we discussed that
primarily the use would be from his neighbors and this type of activity helps “self police” the
neighborhood.

e Potential for increased trash in the creek, We discussed that the creek already has a significant amount
of debris. Although DPW would not keep a constant trash patrol, the fact that we would plow snow
and provide some access through the summer, we would identify and address large issues where it is
now out of sight and unaccessible.

e Loss of privacy for his back yard. We discussed options of planting additional trees to screen his
residence.

e They were not told of this by the realtors when they bought their homes. We discussed that the easement
was dedicated in 2007 and their homes were built on or after 2010, The City staff would have been
able to discuss the easement and potential for a trail. Others at the meeting purchased their lots directly
from the developer and have been anticipating the opening of the trail in their neighborhood. -

From the meeting, we told the attendees that this would be placed on an agenda for your consideration of
engineering ($103k): We could start the design now for construction in 2016 or 2017.

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT: GEM
C:\Users 5\ AppData\ Local\ Microsoft\ Windows\ Temporary Internet Files\ Content.Outlook\NGTSTPIN\CA river Park trail nov 3 .deoc
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Per previous discussion in August, Staff has discussed the project and recommends that the City use JSD
Professional Services (currently performing work on Southbrook Trail). JSD proposing to use Malas
Engineering (currently performing work on St. Martin Culvert) as sub-consultant on the bridge crossing East
Branch of Root River and agency coordination. PSI will be used for geotechnical and RA Smith National will
oe used for wetland delineation and tree survey. All consultants have good working relationship with Staff
from previous Franklin projects.

JSD’s proposal of $103,631 may seem somewhat excessive. You may recall that another consultant proposed a
fee of $44,500 for another trail section that also involved extensive permitting but did not include design or
permitting of a bridge. The previous fee was justified by two other reputable consulting firms. In addition, this
project will have difficult topographic survey requirements through thick brush and crossing a creek.
Permitting the crossing of the waterway is anticipated to be significant. In addition, the length of the bridge is
anticipated to make this project expensive, especially since it will be designed to accommodate light DPW
snow removal equipment. Staff feels that this fee for JSD is reasonable.

This project can start design and bid out this winter. A contractor can start fabrication of bridge materials,
Both activities are eligible for park impact fees.

OPTIONS
Award professional services agreement with JSD Professional Services or table.

FISCAL NOTES

This project is in the Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (Chapter 7 and Map 7.1- Cascade Crock Trail)
and also in the 2015 Park Impact Fee study that states bridges may be part of a trail project. This project has
not been included in the proposed 2016 Capital Improvement Plan,

£ngineering plus construction is approximately $550k. This would appear to be a good use of park impact fees
in that there is a 61% credit towards trail projects (approximately $335.5k).

RECOMMENDATIONS
Motion to adopt resolution 2015~ authorizing the engagement of JSD Professional Services, Inc for
design services for a trail and bridge crossing East Branch of the Root River in the amount of $103,631.

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT: GEM
C:\Users »pData\ Local\ Microsoft\ Windows\ Temporary [nternet Files\ Content.Cutiock, NGT8TPLN\ CA river Park trail nov 3 .doc
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APPROVALp REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
(L 11/03/2015
Reports & A RESOLUTION FOR CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR BCF ITEM NO.
Recommendations CONSTRUCTION, FOR THE EXTENSION OF W. P
EVERGREEN STREET AND DEVELOPMENT OF PLEASANT = 7:
VIEW PARK
BACKGROUND

BCF Construction Corp has completed all construction and final punch list items for Pleasant View Park and W.
Evergreen Street Extension (Project 2014-003).

This item was tabled at the October 20, 2015 Common Council Meeting.

ANALYSIS :

The original contract cost with the plan quantities was $923,024.20, Adjustment in quantities for sanitary sewer,
water main and storm pipe, length of TV senitary sewer, pavement removal, undercutting and pavement
construction, and excavation (see “CO 1” column on attached spreadsheet of quantities) total an increase of
$6,008.00. The total project costs after this change order will be $929,032.20. '

Staff has participated in the oversight of the project. The Consultant, GRAEF, has reviewed and recommended
that the final quantity adjustments are justified.

OPTIONS
Approve or deny.

FISCAL NOTE
Funding for this project will be by assessment, park impact fee and City funding match.

RECOMMENDATION

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015- a resolution approving contract a Change Order
No. 1 for BCF Construction, Inc. in the amount of $6,008.00 for the Extension of W. Evergreen Street and
Development of Pleasant View Park.

DEPARTMENT OF ENGINEERING: GEM
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STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING STAFF TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1
TO BCF CONSTRUCTION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,008,00
FOR THE EXTENSION OF W. EVERGREEN STREET AND
DEVELOPMENT OF PLEASANT VIEW PARK.

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin has contracted for the public works construction of an
extension fo W. Evergreen Street and the development of Pleasant View Park; and

WHEREAS, BCF Construction, Inc was the contractor performing the work; and
WHEREAS this was a unit price contract; and
WHEREAS project is complete and an adjustment in final quantities is needed; and

WHEREAS, the City’s consultant engineer, GRAEF, has reviewed and certified prices for
such work;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that Staff is authorized to execute a Change Order Number 1 to BCF Construction
which increases the contract amount by $6,008.00 to a total construction cost of $929,032.20.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2015 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of , 2015,

APPROVED:

Stephen R, Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

80



CHANGE ORDER

No. 1
DATE OF ISSUANCE _ September 23, 2015 ' EFFECTIVE DATE _Septernber 23, 2015

OWNER _City of Franklin

CONTRACTOR _BCF Construction Corp.

Contract: _Pleasant View Park Development and W. Evergreen Street Extension

Project: _Pleasant View Park Development and W, Evergreen Street Extension

CWNER's Contract No, _2014-003 ENGINEER's Contract No. 2014-0160.01
ENGINEER _GRAFF- 1JSA Inc,

You are directsd to make the following changes in the Contract Documents:
Description:
Revised Final Quantities,

Reason for Change Order:
Revised Final Quantities

Attachments: (List documents supporting éhange)
Summary of quantities and unit prices

CHANGE TN CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:
Original Contract Price Original Contract Times;
' : Substantial Completion: Sepiember 12, 2014
$.923,024.20 Ready for final payment: September 26, 2014
(days or dates)
Net Iucrease from prevtous Change Orders Net change from previous Change Orders No, o
No. Ne. :
Substantial Completion; 0
$ 0.00 Ready for final payment: 0
(days)
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: September 12, 2014
$.923,02420 Ready for final payment: September 26. 2014
(days or dates)
Net increase of this Change Order: Net increase this Change Order:
Substantial Completion: 0
$_6,008.00 Ready for final payment; _363
(days)
Contract Price with all approved Change Orders; Contract Times with all approved Change Orders;
Substantial Completion: _September 12, 2014
$_929,032,20 Ready for final payment: _September 23, 2015
(days or dates)
RECOMMENDED: APPROVED: ACCEPTED:
7 %M /7 / By: By:
ENGINEER (Authorized Signaturd) OWNER {Authorized Signature) CONTRACTOR (Authorized Signature)
Date: QA?A 5 Date: : Date:
EICHC 1910-8-B (1996 Edition)

 Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Dosuments Commiltes and endorsed by The Assosleied General Contractors of America and the Construction Specifications
Institute,
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Ona Honey Cresk Corparate Center
125 Soith 64© Strest, Sulte 401
Milwankes, W1 53214-1470
4141269 1500

41412690037 fax

www,graef-usa.com

— '
GRaEF coflaborate / formulate / innovate

September 23, 2015

Mr. Glen Morrow, P.E.

City Engineer/Director of Public Works
9229 West Loomis Road

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132-0160

SUBJECT:  Pleasant View Park Development and W. Evergreen Strest Extension
Project No, 2014-003
Contractor's Final Pay Request and Change Order

Dear Mr. Morrow,

GRAEF has received and reviewed the sixth and final pay request from BCF
Construction Corp. for work on the above referenced project. The work inciudes final
quantity adjustments, erosion control removal and retainage. The project has been
completed and all outstanding punch {ist items have been satisfied. Due to this, we
recommend releasing the retainage on the project.

The contractor has requested payment of $45,669.80. GRAEF Is recommending
payment of $45,669,80 according to our inspector's notes. Due to final quantity
adjustments and the unsuitable material unforeseen condition, a change order is
required for the project. A copy of the change order s included for your use and three
original change orders have been forwarded to the contractor for signature.

In summary, GRAEF recommends final payment of $45,669.80 to BCF Construction
Corp. for work on the above referenced project, Should you have any further questions,
please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

Michae! N. Paulos, P.E., LEED AP, CDT

Municipal Market Team Leader

Principal

MNP:mnp
L:\Jobe2014\20140180\Project_information\Carrespondencelletterivoriowl -ROPS.docx

oc; Bryan Fischer — BCF Construction Corp.

2014-0160.01
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"No._6_
RECOMMENDATION OF PAYMENT

OWNER’s Projoct No.2014-003 ENGINEER’s Project No. ._2014-0160,01

Project, Pleasant View Park Development and W. Evergreen Street Extension,

..................................................................

................................................

.............................................................................

OWNER

Attached hereto is the CONTRACTOR’s Application for Payment for Work accomplished under the Contract
through the date indicated above. The Application meets the requirements of the Contract Documents and includes
the CONTRACTOR’s Certificate stating that all previous payments to him under the Contract have been appHed by
him to discharge in full all of his obligations in conmection with the Work covered by all prior Applications for
Payments.

In accordance with the Contract the undersigned recommends payment to the CONTRACTOR of the amount due
as shown below. ’

...................................................

ENGINEER

Dated __ September 23, 2013 By Wdﬂﬂr ﬁ\

..........................................................................

STATEMENT OF WORK

Original Contract Price  § . 923,02420... Workto Date $....920.032.20
Net Change Orders $ e 5400800 Amount Retained L —— 000
Current Confract Price  $__.._. 929.03220.... Subtotal ¥ .....9220.032.20
Work to be Done o000 Previous Payments Recommended  § . 883,362.40
Amount Dus This Payment $o 45,669.80.....

NSPE-ACEC 1910-8-C (1978 Edition})

1978, National Society of
Professional Engineers
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING

DATE
mu COUNCIL ACTION |
- St 11/03/2015
A Resolution to Adopt a Position Classification Plan ITEM NUMBER
REPORTS & and a Compensation Plan for Non-Represented
RECOMMENDATIONS Employees; an Implementation Strategy for the C’ C;?
Same, and Changes to Certain Position Titles, to =0,

Implement 2015 Non-Represented Employee General
Wage Adjustments in Accordance with the
Compensation Plan and Implementation Strategy,
and to Authorize Amendment to the Employee
Handbook and the Civil Service System Personnel
Administration Program to Reflect Such Changes

The Common Council hired GovHR USA to perform a Classificaion and Compensation Study to
appropriately establish and position non-represented employee wages for both internal and external equity.
The study was received in August of 2015 and has been under review since that time. The consultant
presented the results to the Common Council at a public meeting in August. Adoption of the study, along
with an implementation plan, was incorporated into the Mayor's 2016 recommended budget for approval
with the necessary funding. The Common Council directed that the Personnel Committee report back to
them as to a recommendation prior to the end of October. During that period of review, the Director of
Administration held approximately 10 different meetings, averaging over an hour and a half in length, with
amployee groups to explain in detail the nature of the study results and the intent of the implementation

.an, The Personnel Committee unanimously adopted (those in attendance) the motions below which were
reported in general to the Aldermen during the second budget deliberation.

“Motion by Member Wikel and seconded by Member Barber to recommend to the Common Council to
accept the Classification Study as presented by the consultant with the policy and implementation
recommendations recommended by the Director of Administration in the budget documentation and to
commence the appeals process as an administrative review. Motion Carried: Ayes— AlL”

“Motion by Alderman Schmidt and seconded by Member Sheehan to recommend to the Common
Council the Compensation Plan as presented for the 65th percentile with the implementation
recommendations as presented by the Director of Administration. Motion Carried: Ayes- AIL”

The Committee of the Whole completed its budget review and has sent to public hearing a 2016 budget
proposal that did not impact the recommendation o adopt the Classification and Compensation Study.

The attached resolution adopts and implements the Classification and Compensation Study as presented by
the Consultant with the implementation modifications recommended by the Director of Administration and
the Personnel Committee, including some additional details as required. This is a large, complex issue, and,
therefore, the Resolution has many components. The following paragraphs walk through the Resolution
highlighting certain aspects or the intent of certain aspects.

e first “Resolved” broadly adopts the Classification Plan and, importantly, dictates that an appeal process
shall be completed. Any positions classifications that are recommended for adjustment as a result of an
appeal would be brought back to the Personnel Committee and the Common Council for confirmation.
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The second “Resolved” broadly adopts the Compensation Structure and establishes the pay philosophy at the
sixty-fifth percentile, consistent with the Mayor’s Proposed 2016 Budget.

.1e third “Resolved” itemizes 8 points necessary for implementation of the Compensation Plan, the points
are summarized as follows:
Point 1. Stipulate that the City’s intent is to establish merit pay and direct the Director of Administration to
guide the development of a new, equitable performance evaluation system.
Point 2. Establish the definition and intent of a “Market Rate” within each pay grade to establish the intended
market-competitive salary for each classification grade and for employees that continue, at a minimum, to
meet expectations.
Point 3. Self explanatory.
Point 4. Establish and define Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments, the methodology by which a satisfactory
employee can achieve the Market Rate with acceptable performance.
Point 5. Establish and explain the Merit Range Segment of the pay plan, identifying the top 35% of each pay
range as intended primarily for those employees who exceed expectations.
Point 6. Explains how Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments and Merit Performance Increases are applied
going forward and how the pay-for-performance concept is initially implemented.
Point 7. Explains how the pay philosophy is maintained overtime.
Point 8. Addresses multiple miscellaneous issues that are necessary to be addressed within a compensation
plan including, for example, promotions, non-scheduled wage adjustments, the potential for Market Rate
special circumstances (including the method to address the unique scenario for Sergeants), monitoring
compression in the future, and general administration issues such as calculation procedures.

e fourth “Resolved” authorizes wage adjustments for 2015 for non-represented employees and addresses
wne details of the implementation strategy to place individuals within the plan. Most of the increases for 2015
become effective retroactive to the start of the employee’s third pay period. Much of the focus of the
implementation strategy is on bringing individuals below or at the bottom of their range info an appropriate
position within the range. The items are consistent with the strategy presented in the budget document. Point
8 addresses Fair Labor Standard Act (FLSA) considerations and addresses overtime implications for certain
positions. The FLSA review was part of the contract with GovHR USA.

The fifth “Resolved” simply retains the City and Common Council’s rights,

The sixth “Resolved” simply renames some positions, as recommended by the consultant. The Information
Technology Director position was not renamed to “Manager” as we are curtently within the hiring process.

The final “Resolved” directs and authorizes the Director of Administration to incorporate the Resolution into
the Employee Handbook and Civil Service System Personnel Administration Program as necessary. Those
documents are written in a different style and have their own structure. Therefore, incorporating the
Resolution will take some time. Nonetheless, that administrative step can occur concurrently with the
implementation steps if the Common Council authorizes implementation. It also addresses incorporation of
the current Salary Administration Policy type language which would need to be done to reflect the new
Classification methodology that GovHR USA prescribed. Effectively, much of the old language of the Salary
Administration Policy becomes outdated with the new Classification and Compensation Plan, but some of the

planatory language should be incorporated. Nonetheless, to ensure the consistency and acceptance of the
final form, the Resolution does stipulate that the final documents be brought back to the Common Council for
confirmation at that time.
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Funding: Fundifig for ifplementation has already been addréssed by the Comimon Council. All 2015 non-
represented wage increases were held in abeyance pending this implementation. Those resources fund the

ajority of the 2015 wage adjustments. Additionally, approximately $40,000 in appropriations intended for
| wages in 2014 were specifically allowed to fall to the bottom line for the purpose of using them to aid in
funding implementation. A budget modification appropriating those resources could be addressed at this
time if the Common Council desires, biit if savings across the individiial Personnel Services portions of each
of the 2015 departmental budgets are sufficient that step can be skipped, If they appear to be insufficient as
the City approaches year’s end, such a budget modification would be brought in. Sufficient funding is also
incorporated into the 2016 budget for the actions addressed herein. This Resolution, however, does not yet
authorize the 2016 non-represented wage increases, which would be estimated to be applied in late May,
following further action by the Common Council.

Summary: This is a complex issue involving an 80+ page report, a 5-page budget write up, multiple meetings,
and a 5-page resolution. With all of that information and with much of the resolution being straight forward
and self explanatory, I (the Director of Administration) refrained from going into an expansive write-up
further detailing each and every aspect of the Resolution. Istand ready to address any additional questions.
Due to the complexity and magnitude of the implementation efforts required by Payroll, particularly during
the holiday period and given additional ACA requirements, adoption is recommended at this time so that
implementation of wage changes could hopefully occur for the December 11th pay period (25th pay period).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-_____, A Resolution to Adopt a Position Classification Plan and a
Compensation Plan for Non-Represented Employees, an Implementation Strategy for the Same, and Changes
to Certain Position Titles, to Implement 2015 Non-Represented Employee General Wage Adjustments in
Accordance with the Compensation Plan and Implementation Strategy, and to Authorize Amendment to the
. nployee Handbook and the Civil Service System Personnel Administration Program to Reflect Such
Changes.

DOA - MWL
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STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-

A Resolution to Adopt a Position Classification Plan and a Compensation Plan for Non-Represented
Employees, an Implementation Strategy for the Same, and Changes to Certain Position Titles, to
Implement 2015 Non-Represented Employee General Wage Adjustments in Accordance with the
Compensation Plan and kmplementation Strategy, and to Authorize Amendment to the Employee

Handbook and the Civil Service System Personnel Administration Program to Reflect Such Changes

WHEREAS the City of Franklin contracted with GovHR USA to prepare a Classification and Compensation
Study and to provide a tool for the continued classification of positions; and

WHEREAS the Director of Administration has prepared and proposed a series of implementation
recommendations, as outlined below; and

WHEREAS the Mayor, Personnel Committee, and Director of Administration have recommended the
adoption of the classification plan, compensation philosophy, compensation plan structure, and implementation
strategy generally as set forth below; and

WHEREAS it is expected that additional details of implementation, including but not limited to completion of
the appeal process relative to individual position classification plan placement, may continue to come forward, but
such details need not delay the initial overall implementation as set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Frankiin that the Non-
Represented Employee Classification Plan, attached hereto and labeled Table 1, is hereby adopted, and the Director
of Administration is directed to implement that plan and plan components, as delivered by GovHR USA, including
proceeding with an initial appeal process related to the initial placement of positions within the classification plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and Common Council of the €ity of Franklin adopts as the
compensation philosophy to pay non-represented employees at the sixty-fifth percentile relative to comparable
communities, with such comparable communities as established by the Common Council, and adopts a
Compensation Plan, setting minimum and maximum salaries and Compensation Plan characteristics in accordance
with the structure as delivered by GovHR USA, which is attached hereto and labeled Table 3.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that implementation of the Compensation Plan shall include the following plan
components:

1. The City of Franklin shall strive to-establish a merit performance plan and system that rewards the best
performers, and acknowledges it intends to enhance and further the merit-based compensation system set forth
below. To that end, the Director of Administration is directed to guide the development of a performance evaluation
system that enables consistent, measureable performance evaluations for the purpose of fairly distributing Merit
Performance Increases, as further described below.

2. Market Rates: The “Market Rate” identifies the point within each salary range that is the targeted salary position
for a tenured employee who is performing at a level that meets expectations. Termed the “Market Rate” for each
grade and each position with each grade, its purpose is to establish and communicate the market-competitive salary
for each position. It establishes clear information and addresses expectations for both hiring and retention
circumstances. The Market Rate shall be established for each range at the point that is 65 percent through the
range, except as otherwise specified below, and is calculated as follows:

[{Maximum Salary = Minimum Salary) x .65] + Minimum Salary
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3. The area of the salary range below the Market Rate is intended for newer employees who, by performing at a
Jevel that meets or exceeds expectations, are eligible for regular, pre-established merit increases with the goal of
yrogressing such individuals to the Market Rate in the manner described in number 4 below.

4. Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments: A goal of the Compensation Plan for keeping quality employees who meet
or exceed expectations shall be to advance guality employees to the midpoint and then to the Market Rate within a
reasonable and appropriate time frame, which time period will vary depending upon the employee’s starting salary
and performance and the frequency and amount of the merit pool as designated by the Common Council annually.
Provided the employee receives a performance evaluation rating of “meets expectations” or better, Progress-to-
Market-Rate Adjustments are granted automatically at the time across-the-board Market Adjustments to salaries
and/or Merit Performance Increases are authorized, are not dependent upon market adjustment pools or merit
pools, but are subject to authorized appropriations.

The applicable rates for a Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustment shall be established as follows:

Range Salary Increase
Salaries including and from the Minimum and below the point 30% through the range: 2.25%
Salaries including and from the point 30% through the range and below the Midpoint: 1.50%
Salaries including and from the Midpoint and below the Market Rate: 75%
Salaries including and above the Market Rate: 0%

For the purpose of phasing in this methodology, however, the 2015 rates for Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments
rates shall be two-thirds of the above {1.5%, 1.0%, and .5% respectively).

5. Merit Range Segment of the Pay Range: The area of the salary range above the Market Rate is intended for the
“ollowing:

a. tenured employees who, by performing at a level that exceeds expectations, have been advanced into this
portion of the range through subsequent merit increases;

b. employees placed into this portion of the range at initial adoption of the plan or advanced into this range
through across-the-board adjustments prior to final implementation of a performance evaluation system;
and

¢. employees placed in this range or moved through the range based upon special market conditions or
special hiring or retention circumstances, both as may be separately approved from time to time.

Therefore, after implementation of the merit performance component of the pay plan, individuals
earning their way into the Merit Range, the top 35% of the pay range, will have achieved that position
through outstanding or excepticnal performance. Additionally, individuals having earned their way
into the Merit Range or having received an initial placement in the Merit Range should expect to only
see continued advancement in the range through continued outstanding or exceptional performance,
provided a merit pool has been set by the Common Council. In other words, after adoption of a
performance evaluation plan, an employee who consistently exceeds expectations can expect to reach
the maximum of the salary range during their career, provided ample merit pools have been
designated over time. Conversely, an average employee performing at a standard or good leve! should
not expect to reach the top of the range, but should reach the Market Rate in a reasonably timely
manner.

6. Merit Pay: Top pay is intended for top performers. Merit Increases are awarded through allocation and
distribution of a Merit Pool, the pool of resources designated by the Common Council for Merit Pay. Merit Increases

ave two components and are added to any Market Adjustments to the Wage and Salary Rates, but do not
compeund at initial application,
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a. Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments, as described above, are a sub-component of Merit Increases. It is
intended that this component is awarded or allocated first based upon the methodology identified above.
It is given to any employee who meets or exceeds expectations and falls into the Progress-to-Market-Rate
Adjustments ranges or categories noted above. [Note: The Common Council may adjust the Progress-to-
Market-Rate Adjustments Rates from time to time, but it is intended that these rates and the priority of
these rates shall remain unaltered.]

b. Merit Performance Increases. After adoption and implementation of a performance evaluation system
that enables consistent, measureable performance evaluations, the remaining portion of the Merit Pool
{after Progress-to-Market Rate Adjustments) will be allocated to employees based upon an annually
approved formula. The formula may award varying percentages based upon the degrees of performance
{distinguishable gradients of merit performance), may address departments or divisions differently, and
may include any component deemed appropriate by the Common Council. Pending adoption and
implementation of a performance evaluation system, the portion of the Merit Pool to be awarded through
Merit Performance Increases will be allocated on an across-the-board basis to all employees who have
received an evaluation of “standard” or meets or exceeds expectations, except in the event of any special,
flat amount award as otherwise provided for, and excluding the portion of any circumstance that would
exceed the approved wage range. Any performance evaluation scored below this level and not qualifying
the employee for any Merit Pay increase must be confirmed by Human Resources.

7. Maintaining the Pay Philosophy or Annual Adjustment to the Pay Ranges: Annually, or as otherwise determined
by the Common Council, the Common Council will set the following:
a. Market Adjustment to the Pay Ranges of the Compensation Plan: The compensation ranges should be
adjusted to track the changes in base pay as offered to the employees of the comparable communities. A
Market Adjustment to the Pay Range does not adjust any employees’ pay; it simply re-establishes the
ranges to reflect current market conditions. Absent an action by the Common Council to address the
Market Adjustment to the Pay Ranges, the Director of Administration will report the impact on the adopted
pay philosophy or desired market position target (currently the sixty-fifth percentile).
b. Market Adjustment to the Wage and Salary Rates {Market Pool): These are across-the-board adjustments
to employee wage and salary rates. They are intended to equal the Market Adjustment to the Pay Ranges.
They are only available to employees who meet or exceed expectations. Their purpose is to help ensure
employees retain their relative position against the market and within their pay range. The Market Pool is
the amount of money dedicated to addressing this issue.

8. Miscellaneous Compensation Plan Components

a. Promotions: Except as otherwise noted, an employee receiving a promotion (a transfer to a position at a
higher pay grade) will receive an adjustment to base pay of af least 5% and not more than 7.5%, but not
less than the minimum of the range, as determined by the Mayor, upon recommendation of the
Department Head and Director of Administration, taking into account experience, performance, the
compensation structure, and other such factors as may be determined to be appropriate. Additionally, and
as an exception, such an employee being promoted from an “FLSA non-exempt” position to an “FLSA
exempt” position may he placed at an initial salary that takes into consideration loss of access to overtime,
historical average-annual overtime earnings, anticipated additional hours worked, and other such factors as
may be determined to be appropriate, but may not be placed at above the Market Rate, unless required by
the minimum promotional increase as described above.

b. Non-Compounding: An employee may receive a Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustment, a Market Rate
Adjustment, and a Merit Performance increase at the same time, but the combined increase is capped at
5.5% for a given year, unless otherwise authorized by the Mayor or Common Council. All adjustments
applied at the same time will be added together and applied as a single increase, and, therefore, are
applied without any compounding effect for that period.
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¢. Non-Scheduled Wage Adjustments: At any time or at any position in the range an Appointing Authority
may recommend a flat or percentage amount merit award for an individual that may be a one-time award,
an award for a fixed-period up to one calendar year, or an adjustment to the base, which adjustment to the
base may not exceed the grade maximum salary. Any such award, or combination of such awards during a
calendar year, is subject to approval by the Mayor, following review and recommendation by the Director
of Administration, but may not exceed a 5% increase in annual gross compensation without approval by the
Common Council, Any such award is dependent upon available appropriations.

d. Market Rate Special Circumstances: Special consideration may be given by the Common Council as to the
need to adjust the Market Rate and/or establish an effective salary minimum for a position based upon
factors as the Common Council may determine are applicable, including but not limited to whether or not
said position is part of a promotional path, is at risk of compression, or is a deterrent to internal candidates
seeking promotions without such special consideration. The following Market Rate Special Circumstance
exists at initial implementation.

(i) Sergeant. If the position of Sergeant is in Grade 9, the effective salary minimum upon implementation
is $73,776, which represents a 7.5% increase above the current top Patrol Officer annual wage, which
results in a Market Rate for the position of $73,567.

e. Compression: If the Director of Administration determines wage compression exists between any
supervisory and subordinate positions as a result of differences between the change over time in non-
represented and represented (union) wage increases, the Director shall bring such issue to the Personne!
Committee for review and consideration.

f. Salary Maximums: An individual whose salary exceeds or would exceed the maximum of the range may
not receive any part of an increase that exceeds the maximum of the range, unless otherwise specifically
approved as provided for above. If a Market Adjustment to the Pay Range occurs during the same calendar
year and within six months of such an instance and the individual’s salary following the Market Adjustment
to the Pay Range is now within the salary range, that portion of the increase that was vacated, up to the
maximum of the range, may be reapplied retroactively.

g. Rounding and General Administration: Minimum, maximum, and Market Rate annual salary rates shall be
rounded to the nearest dollar for both presentation and application purposes. The Compensation Plan as
presented in the Employee Handbook and the Civil Service System Personnel Administration Program shall
list the minimum salary, maximum salary, and Market Rate for each classification grade. For part-time
positions the minimum salary, maximum salary, and Market Rate shall be calculated on a proportional basis
as shall be determined by the Director of Administration.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin authorize adjustment to
the pay of non-represented employees in accordance with the implementation plan set forth herein and adopts the
additional following specific provisions to effectuate the implementation of the Non-Represented Employee
Classification Plan and the Non-Represented Employee Compensation Plan:

1. Individuals with compensation rates below minimum of the range will be awarded an increase of up to 6% or
whatever percentage Is necessary to raise them to the minimum of the range retroactive to the start of the 4th full
pay period of 2015 for the position.

2. In addition to item “1.” of this section, individuals with compensation rates below minimum of the range after
application of item “1.” of this section, will be awarded an increase of up to 6% or whatever percentage is necessary
to raise them to the minimum of the range effective at the start of the 25th full pay period of 2015 for the position.

3. Individuals with significant tenure (in the position) and whose current wage places them within the bottom 20% of

the salary range for the position will be awarded an increase of a percentage as noted below based upon their years
Sf service and position in the range, per the following schedule:
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Position in Range Years of Service In Current Position and Percentage Award
Bottom 10% of Range: 10+ years of service = 3% At least 5 but less than 10 years of service = 2%
ottom 10% to 20% of Range: 10+ years of service=1.5% At least 5 but less than 10 years of service = 1%

4, Individuals with compensation rates below the minimum of the range who receive an increase from application of
item “1.” above, which increase is less than the individual would receive in accordance with item “3.” had their
current salary been equal to the minimum of the range, shall receive the percentage the individual would receive in
accordance with item “3.” above as if their current salary was the minimum of the range, instead of receiving the
lesser amount that would result from applying item “1.” above. {This effectively awards the greater of item “1.” or
itemn “3.” above for those tenured individual just below the minimum.)

5. In addition to items “1.” through “4.” above and standard Compensation Plan components as set forth herein,
individuals may receive Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments in accordance with the following table applicable for
2015 and effective at the start of the 4th full pay period of 2015 for the position:

Range Salary Increase
Salaries including and from the Minimum and below the point 30% through the range: 1.50%
Salaries including and from the point 30% through the range and below the Midpoint: 1.00%
Salaries including and from the Midpoint and below the Market Rate: .50%
Salaries including and above the Market Rate: 0%

6. In addition to items “1.” through “5.” above and standard Compensation Plan components as set forth herein,
individuals may receive a Market Adjustment to the Wage and Salary Rates increase of 1.5% effective at the start of
the 4th full pay period of 2015.

". The Director of Administration and Human Resources Coordinator will review the current pay plan circumstances
for employees hired within the past two years or promoted within the past 18 months to determine a fair and
appropriate placement within the new Compensation Plan range, which placement shall require approval by the
Mayor,

8. Falr Labor Standards Act (FLSA): In accordance with their designation as FLSA-exempt positions, Department of
Public Works Supervisors shall no longer be eligible for overtime compensation; however, the placement of the
incumbents within the salary grade for the position shall be based upon a review by the Director of Administration
and Human Resources Coordinator as to overtime and hours worked records to determine a fair and appropriate
placement within the new Compensation Plan range, which placement shall require approval by the Mayor. Public
Health Nurses shall continue to receive overtime in accordance with historical practices pending further review and
subsequent action by the Common Council. The Planner and Planner li position descriptions shall be modified to
indicate that the positions are FLSA non-exempt, and the positions shall be administered as such retroactive to
October, 2015,

9. As part of the initial implementation, individuals remaining below the minimum for the range following allocation
of 2016 wage adjustments will be evaluated for placement at the minimum position on the range, subject to
approval by the Mayor or Library Board following review and recommendation by the Director of Administration and
Library Director, as appropriate.

BE{T FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin that each and every
component of the Classification Plan, Compensation Plan, this Resolution, and all related such policies adopted
herein or elsewhere remain at the sole discretion of the Common Council and are subject to change by the Common

ouncil, with or without notice, and that none of the statements, policies, procedures, rules, or regulations contained

104



herein constitutes a guarantee of employment, guarantee of any other right or benefit, or a contract of employment,
express or implied.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin that the following
position descriptions be modified to reflect a change in title as indicated below:

Current Position Title Amended Position Title

Senior Planner Principal Planner

Secretary {Fire) Confidential Fire Administrative Assistant
Planner |l Associate Planner

Planner Assistant Planner

Secretary (DPW) Administrative Assistant

Secretary (Engineering) Administrative Assistant

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin that the Director of
Administration is hereby directed to prepare and implement amendments to the current Employee Handbook and
Civil Service System Personnel Administration Program, in a form, format, and manner as he shall determine is
appropriate, in order to clearly and accurately report and incorporate the policy changes effectuated herein,
including such amendments as may be requested or confirmed by the Library Board, which shall include a
descriptive, explanation of the nature and basis for the Compensation and Classification Plan incorporating aspects of
the current Salary Administration Policy, which policy shall be superseded in its entirety hereafter, The amended
documents shall be presented to the Common Council for confirmation, but confirmation is not required prior to
implementation of this Resolution.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Councll of the City of Franklin this 3rd day of November,
7015 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regutar meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 3rd day of
November, 2015.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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CITY OF FRANKLIN
CLASSIFICATION PLAN
JFA
Position Title Grade| Total Range Recommended New Title

Executive and Management
Director of Administration 14 810 |790 and above
Fire Chief 795 (35 points)
Police Chief 795
Assistant Fire Chief i3 { 770 750 to 785
City Engineer/DPW Director 755
Police Inspector 755
Battalion Chief 12 730 710 to 745
Captain of Police 730
Director of Finance and Treasurer 725
Director of Clerk Services 11 705 670 to 705
Director of Heaith and Human Services 630
Library Director 630
Supervisory and Advanced Technical
Buiiding Inspector 10 | 665 | 615to 665
Sewer & Water Superintendent 665 {50 points)
Information Services Director 645 Information Systems Manager
Assistant City Engineer 635
Economic Development Director 630
Planning Manager 630
Department of Public Works Superintendent 615
Emergency Services Communication Supervisor 9 585 560 to 610
Police Sergeant 570
Senior Planner 570 Principal Planner
Public Health Nurse Supervisor 565
Project Engineer 560
Electrical Inspector B 550 505 to 555
Plumbing Inspector 550
First Assistant Building Inspector 545
Aduilt Services Librarian/Assistant Director 540
Human Resources Coordinator 520
Accounting Supervisor 505
Engineering Tech IV 505
Deputy Treasurer 7 485 450 to 500
Assistant Superintendent of Public Works 480
Assistant Building Inspector 470
Building Maintenance Superintendent 460
Sanitarian 460
Engineering Tech Iil 455
Library Circutation Supervisor 455
Mechanic | 455

Prepared by: GovHR USA
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CITY OF FRANKLIN Table 1
CLASSIFICATION PLAN
JFA
Position Title Grade| Total Range Recommended New Title

Planner li 455 Associate Planner
Public Heaith Nurse 455
Administrative and Technical
Sewer & Water Operator Il 6 440 415 to 445
Court Administrative Assistant 435 {30 points})
Reference Librarian 420
Youth Reference/Young Adult Librarian 420
Engineering Tech il 415
Dispatcher 5 410 380 to 410
Heavy Equipment Operator 410
Sewer & Water Operator | 395
Inspection Permit Clerk 395
Assistant Mechanic 390
Accountant 385
Deputy City Clerk 385
Light Equipment Operator 4 375 345 to 375
Confidential Police Administrative Assistant 370
Secretary {Fire) 370 Conf. Fire Administrative Asst.
Deputy Court Administrative Assistant 370
Sewer & Water Technician 370
Administrative/Project Assistant 365
Program and Outreach Coordinator 365
Planner ' 355 Assistant Planner
Clerical and Support Staff
Secretary (DPW) 3 335 310to 340 JAdministrative Assistant
Secretary {Engineering) 335 Administrative Assistant
Municipal Court Clerk 325
Account Clerk 315 Payroli Clerk
Administrative Clerk 315
Assessor Clerk 315
Maintenance Custodian 315
Secretary (Building) 2 305 275 to 305
Library Assistant 300
Secretary {Planning) 300
Finance Clerk 290
Secretary (Clerk) 290
Lead Cashier 285
Clerk Typist 275
Cashier/Clerk i 270 To 270
Library Administrative Alde 270
Custodian 235
Police Utility Clerk 235
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CITY OF FRANKLIN Table 1
CLASSIFICATION PLAN
JFA
Position Title Grade| Total Range Recommended New Title

Library Shelver

Clinic Staff Nurse Not classified
Clerical Aide Not classified
Eng Tech | Not classified
Public Works Foreman Not classified
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CITY OF FRANKLIN

CLASSIFICATION PLAN
THOLE 9

65th Percentile

Clerical and Support Staff

7.5% between Ranges

30% Range Spread
1 $32,500 542,250
2 $34,938 545,419
3 $37,558 548,825

Administrative and Technical

7.5% between Ranges

30% Range Spread
4 $42,500 $55,250
5 545,688 $59,394
6 $49,114 $63,848

Supervisory and Advanced Technical

7.5% between Ranges

32.5% Range Spread
7 554,000 $71,550
8 658,050 576,916
9 $62,404 $82,685
10 567,084 588,886

Executive and Management

7.5% between Ranges

35% Range Spread

(11 $72,000 $97,200

12 $77,400 $104,490
13 $83,205 $112,327
14 $89,445 $120,751

Prepared by: GovHR USA
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APPROVALQ @\‘& REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

COUNCIL ACTION November 3, 2015
REPORTS & September 2015 Monthly Financial Report ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS < .9,

Background

The September 2015 Financial Report is attached.

The Einance Committee has not reviewed this report. Highlights of the report are contained in the
transmittal memo.

The Finance Director will be on hand to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Receive and place on file
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Date: October 26, 2015

To: Mayor Olson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members
From: Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance & Treasurer /\
Subject; September, 2015 Financial Report

The September, 2015 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TID3
Fund, TiD 4 Fund, Library Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Development Fund, Capital Outlay
Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Street Improvement
Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund, Water Fund, Self Insurance Fund, Employee Retirement
Insurance Fund, and Non-Major Funds are attached.

The budget allocation is calculated using average activity for that item over the previous
five years. Therefore caution is advised when reviewing variances to budget, as activity
patterns change over time can relate to manager inputs or service demand changes.
Note that, in those instances where no prior history for the account is present, there is
no monthly allocation of the budget. ‘ '

General Fund revenues of $21,860,018 are $283,576 favorable to the budget.

+ Room Tax revenues on the newest hotel have been delayed with the opening,
generating a $57,056 unfavorable variance.

o State Exempt Computer Aid of $589,797 is $244,797 favorable to budget related
to additional equipment in the City. The amount of equipment significantly
increased generating a 70% increase in this state aid.

» Building permit revenues of $404,793 are $151,546 unfavorable to budget, and
the prior year. No major permits have been pulled in 2015.

» Interest on the tax roll of $66,787 is complete and will be $33,213 unfavorable to
plan.

General Fund Expenditures of $17,289,946 are $925,219 favorable to budget.

s General Government savings of $237,803 is centered in Insurance (a timing
issue with the budget) and Information Services related to a vacant manager
position
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¢ Within Public Safety — several vacant Police positions over the summer are
providing savings to budget ($424,855 favorable variance).

» DPW Personnel costs are favorable. A larger than expected use of dept staff on
projects related to the Kayla's park project is resulting in favorable personnel
savings ($160,496). While Non-Personnel costs are reduced on low fuel prices

« The vacant Economic Development Manager position explains the reduced
Conservation and Development costs ($44,687 or 72% favorable variance). On
the Non-Personnel side, Professional fees related to the Retail Area and Ryan &
Loomis development projects are generating these costs. '

« In the Contingency area, expenditures to explore new Development areas are
driving those costs ($49,000) and will be moved to the Development area.

o Transfers are those to Capital Outlay fund authorized in the 2015 budget.

o Fourth Quarter reviews may result in some proposed budget amendments to
deal with spending issues.

The General Fund $4,570,072 sur‘plfxs is $1,208,795 favorable to budget primarily due
to reduced expenditures and the $244,797 additional exempt computer aids.

DEBT SERVICE — Activity is as expected.

TID3 — Receipts are as forecast. The 27" Street road project is in full'swing with
commitments made on the Burying utilities project and elements of the road project.

TID4 - Receipts are as forecast. Expenditures on planning the next phase of project
costs have been incurred, but no decisions to proceed have been made.

LIBRARY FUND - Library fund revenues are approximately on budget. Expenditures of
$949,629 are $122,881 favorable to budget. Reduced library materials purchases are
causing the surplus.

SOLID WASTE FUND — Revenue is comparable to budget. Tippage Fee costs arrive a
month after other costs.

DEVELOPMENT FUND impact fee revenues of $347,257 are below budget. 2015
Development is slower than last year. Larger development projects result in larger
impact fees. Police, Transportation and Library impact fee collections have been
insufficient to provide the scheduled debt service. As those funds arrive, funds can be

" used to defray Debt Service costs. Capital Inprovement Fund park expenditures have
qualified $501,715 of Impact fees to fund those expenditures. Water Impact fees on the
Water building project have not transfetred, waiting on a revised Water Impact fee
study. This has kept the Park Impact fees just ahead of the limit on the holding period.
However, by November, it is expected that the park impact fee holding period will result
in rebates of fees collected in Q4 of 2005.
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CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND - 2015 Revenues are substantially received. Public Safety
purchases relate to several police squad cars, while the Public Works expenditure was
the purchase of the wood chipper to fight the Emerald Ash Borer.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Revenues are in line with budget. DPW
purchased the snow plow.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND — Revenues are in fine with budget. The 2015 street
improvement program is complete, with invoicing imminent. The project bid came in
favorable to the budget.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND - Landfill siting revenue have fallen behind 2015
Budget levels. Tonnage going into the landfill has fallen 20% off of prior year levels.
Given the allocation of Landfill siting revenues, Capital Improvement Fund revenues
from landfill siting are projected at $511,000 rather than the $830,000 budget, or a
$319,000 shortfall. '

Kayla's Krew playground expenditures and Pleasant View Park improvements (2014
project completion) account for the bulk of the Park expenditures.

SEWER FUND —Revenues and expenditures are in line with budget. Operating income
of $270,141 is favorable to budget. $1,438,722 has been spent on capital projects, the
largest being the Wastewater building.

WATER UTILITY - Revenues are slightly less than budget, principally on reduced
usage by Public Authority customers. Expenditures are unfavorable to budget.
Purchased water cost was estimated for the quarter. That increased cost is driving
operating results unfavorable to budget. Operations produced a profit of $112,256,
compared to the $273,575 budgeted. '

Expenditures on capital projects total $1,869,905, the largest two being the Water
Building and the Scepter Circie water main relay.

SELF INSURANCE FUND -~ With little change in participation in the City’s plan,
premium revenues are approximately equal to budget. 2015 premium rates are lower
than 2014, which explains the reduction in revenues to the prior year. Claims costs are
approximately equal to budget, and slightly greater than 2014. Net revenues of $56,189
approximates forecast. Caution is always advisable in the fund, as claims are rather
lumpy, and swings from surplus to deficit are rather common.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND —Claims activity has driven the Implicit Rate Subsidy to
$80,599. The Implicit Rate Subsidy is the amount that retirees use the health benefit
over the rate that Active employees use the benefit. It is common for older participants
to use the health benefit to a greater extent than younger active participants.
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The 2015 rate reduction has reduced premium revenues to this fund, while 2015 is
seeing higher claims costs than 2014 (which was not a great year either).

Investment results turned negative in August and stayed that way in September,
reflecting an investment loss of $152,994 year fo date.

Non-Major Government Funds - The various Grant, Donations, Development, and
Celebrations funds are included in this report.
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City of Franklin

Tax Increment Financing District #3

Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and investments $ 3,131,514 $ 459,828
Tota! Assets $ 3131514 $ 450,828
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payablie $ 13,673 3 39,856
Line of Credit Advance from Development Fund 1,700,000 3,350,000
Total Liabilifies 1,713,673 3,389,858
Unassigned fund balance 1,417,841 {2,930,028)
Total Fund Balance 1,417,841 (2,930,028)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,131,514 $ 459,828
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Batance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
2015 2015 2015 2014
Annual Year-io-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
. Forecast Forecast Actual Actual
Revenue .
General property fax levy $ 1,681,578 $ 1,681,578 $ 1,681,577 $ 1,572,198
State exempt computer aid 387,133 387,133 421,710 407,508
[nvestment income 55,759 55,759 100,604 97,842
Total revenue 2,124 470 2,124,470 2,203,891 2 077,648
Expenditures
Debi service principal - - 20,000 8,605,000
Debt service interest & fees 146,674 146,674 65,399 214 576
Administrafive expenses 29,000 21,750 14,190 10,201
Interfund interest - . - 49,408 81,157
Capital outlays 3,640,419 2,730,314 3,305,320 180,240
Encumbrances - - (2,320,289) -
Totat expenditures 3,816,003 2,898,738 1,134,028 10,181,174
(1,601,623) § (774,268) 1,069,863 {B,103,526)
Fund balance, beginning of year 347,978 347,978 5,173,498
Fund balance, end of period $ (1,343 645) $ 1417841 $ (2,830,028)

10/26/2015
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City of Franklin

Tax Increment Financing District #4

Balance Sheet

September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and investments $ 105508 $ 122,194
Developer receivable - 1,199

Total Assets 3 105,508 $ 123,393

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 3B/3 08 -
Interfund Advance from Development Fund 238,000 1,238,000

Total Liabilities 238,353 1,238,000
Unassigned Fund Balance (132,845) (1,114,607)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 3 105,508 $ 123,393
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
2015 2015 2015 2014
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Forecast Forecast Actual Actual

Revenue .

General property tax levy $ 1,008,080 $ 1,009,060 $ 1,009,060 3 954,727
State exempt computer aid  _ 23,389 23,389 19,631 24,620
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 92,021 - 92,021 18,001
Invesiment income 826 695 359 835

Total revenue 1,125,396 1,033,144 1,121,071 008,283

Expenditures
Debt servicefinterfund interest 33,579 $ 25184 11,965 45,708
Administrative expenses 9,585 7,189 9,801 8,307
Capital outlays ‘ - - 30,378 -
Encumbrances - - (12,100) -

Total expenditures 43,164 32,373 40,044 54,013

Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,082,232 $ 1,000,771 1,081,027 944,270

Fund balance, beginning of year (1,213,872} (1,213,872) (2,058,877)

Fund balance, end of period $  (131,640) $ (132845 $ (1,114,6b7)

10/26/2015 L\41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2015\CDA T F4.x!sxSeptemBa?- 4015
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City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets ' 2015 2014
Cash and investments $ 718,468 $ 668,894
Total Assets $ 718,468 $ 668,804
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 122,684 $ 122,119
Accrued salaries & wages 544 315
Restricted fund balance 595,240 546,460
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 718,468 $ 668,804

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 2015 2014

Adopted Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Actual Actual
Granis $ 69,300 69,300 $ 69,191 $ 69,214
User Fees 1,173,200 1,173,165 1,172,069 1,168,087
Landfill Operations-tippage 335,000 219,331 220,718 231,949
Investment Income 5,000 4,296 2,076 7.389
Sale of Recyclables 4,100 3,075 382 5,674
Total Revenue 1,586,600 1,469,167 1,464 436 1,482,313

Expenditures:
Personal Services , 22,713 17,471 13,960 13,819
Refuse Collection 666,000 499,500 493,004 487,295
Recycling Collection 365,400 274,050 272,138 - 268,862
Leaf & Brush Pickups 51,400 38,550 17,735 17,530
‘Tippage Fees 438,600 328,950 286,687 334,734
Miscelianeous 2,500 1,875 2,057 1,920
Total expenditures 1,546,613 1,160,396 1,085,581 1,124,160
Revenue over (under) expenditures 39,987 308,771 - 378,855 358,153
Fund balance, beginning of year 216,385 216,385 188,307
~und balance, end of period $ 256,372 _ $ 595,240 $ 546,460
126
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City of Frankiin
Development Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and invesiments $ 3,034,256 $ 1,186,588
Due From Debt Service Fund - 1,075,000
Due From TID 3 850,000 2,250,000
Total Assets $ 3,884,256 $ 4,511,586

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ - 8 -
Non-Spendabie Fund Balance - Advances 850,000 3,287,000
Encumberance 3,321 -
Assigned fund balance 3,030,935 1,224,586
Total Fund Balance 3,884,256 4,511,586
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,884,256 $ 4,511,586
Comparatfve Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 2015 2014
) Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actuai Actual

impact Fee: Parks $ 210,000 $ 175,075 $ 116,971 $ 140,896

impact Fee: Southwest Sewer Serv - - 2,928 14,640

Impact Fee: Administration 5,500 4 450 3,025 4,730

impact Fee: Water 250,000 169,215 107,490 175,330

impact Fee: Transportation 50,000 37,433 17,906 46,678

Impact Fee: Fire Protection 50,000 40,308 23,231 - 40,332

impact Fee: Law Enforcement 73,000 58,808 43,039 74,013

Impact Fee: Library 65,000 53,865 32,667 39,595

Total iImpact Fees 703,500 538,154 347257 536,214
Investment Income 39,000 29,250 27.648 33,235
interfund Interest Income 67,966 50,975 29.974 90,507

Total revenue §10,466 618,379 404,877 659,956
Expenditures:
Other Professional Services 15,000 11,250 8,752 -
Transfer to Debt Service:

Law Enforcement 204,978 136,652 67,122 78,010

Fire 43,013 28,675 42,974 42,959

Transportation 73,535 49,023 23,383 44 734

Library 133,650 89,100 49 004 61,108

Total Transfers to Debt Service 455,176 303,450 182,493 226,811

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund:

Park 1,608,625 106,568 . 501,715 100,000
Total Transfers to Capital improveme 1,609,625 106,568 501,715 100,000
Transfer to Water Ulility 150,000 112,500 - 873,727

Total expenditures 2,228,801 533,768 690,960 1,200,538
Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,418,335) 85,611 (286,083) (540,582)
Fund balance, beginning of year 4,170,338 4,170,339 5,052,168
Fund balance, end of period 3 2!751 ,004 $ 3,884,256 $ 4,511,586

10/26/2015
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City of Franklin
Development Fund Financial Report
For the nine months ended September 30, 2015

Effective with all permits applied for after May 31, 2002, in accordance with our Impact Fee
Ordinance 2002-1712 new impact fees were adopted. The fees are automatically increased
5% in January of each year. The components of the fees for 2015 are as follows.

Multi

Single Two Family

Family Family per Unit
Park and Playground Facilities $ 2.957.00 $ 5914.00 $ 2,040.00
Fire Protection Facilities 410.00 820.00 284.00
Law Enforcement Facilities 762.00 1,524.00 529.00
Water system ' per every 169 galions of daily use 2,069.00 4,138.00 2,069.00
Transportation Faciiities 80.00 160.00 56.00
Administrative Fee 55.00 110.00 55.00
Library Facilities 837.00 1,674.00 559.00
Sanitary Sewer - Ryan Creek 2,928.00 4,392.00 see note

$10,098.00 $18,732.00 $ 5,592.00

In addition to the above, there is an established commercial impact fee of $.523 psf, an
industrial impact fee of $.136 psf and an institutional impact fee of $.738 psf. There is also
a charge on each commercial, industrial or institutional building for water of $2,069 per REC
(residential equivalency) and an administrative fee of $55 for the first 10,000 sq. ft. plus $55
for each additional 10,000 sq. ft.

The funds generated are available for capital projects or related debt service of those
municipal activities. Interest revenue is credited to each account balance.

2

On May 21, 2013, the Common Council adopted Ordinance 2013-2105 to provide for the
extension of and cost recovery of public sanitary sewer within the southwest sanitary sewer
service area served by the Ryan Creek Interceptor public sanitary sewer. The fee for a
single family dwelling with a 0.75" meter is $2,928.00. Fora mutlti family dwelling the fee is
$2,928.00 for the first unit and $1,464.00 for each additional unit, _ ‘

10/23/2015 Findata:Qfrrpt Impact Fees Cover Sheet

128



s0a4 1pedw| D Elepuly

e

sponad aunny ui anp syuawfied Buzisien  00°0

SLOZ/EZIOL

joaloid Jamo | J21epn peoy] Ziang Jo} AINN SS1BAA O] Jajsuel] o
: apeuw sjsuifed BuizisianQ ,

€L620'660°L  0D0OP'E98'E  Q0'00Z'69€  ¥.669'669 spiswiked sopas igaq |
£9°€0L 'vEL 06'120'502 05¥I6'EY ZOGED'EL
a3y 1oeduw UE Jou 834 eAlBSILILIPY Ue Ag papuny
00°G06"£96 00'621'99 0008228 00'0LL'SE 00'628'LE 00'6zZV' 12V 00°091'8 00ZLE'LL 00°90T'2LE S99 pedw £L0Z
00°222'c89 00'L28'LS 00°LEY'BS 00'FEL'8Y 00°9et'L5 00'GlLY'SEe 00°0e8's 00°895'21 00°'Z65'v81 saad wedw| ¥10Z
00252 21vE 00°/99°2¢ 00'6E0°EY 00’ LET'ET 00'906'LE 00°06¥' 204 00'9Z0'c 00'826'2 00°'1L26'9L1 sead joedw] §LOZ
160 £0'L 69°'8 620 65°0Z vLveZL 6822 10°212 . SUUIO JO JagunN
95°55Z'ya8'e 8L'0S6'S LLLYO'L L8 P98'VE 18'¢99°L 06'¥E9'COP S1'¥09°08  £0°8SH'EE LE'LOT'BEE'S  SLOZ/LEMR| sauejeq Buipug
95'S5Z've8'E 81°056'¢€ LE2L'E L8¥98'YE 28'€99'y 06 VER'SOV 91'909°09  £0'BSY'EE LE'Lez'ace’s  Sloziogic eauejeq Bupuy
0026402 Lz YR 4 2zegl 68'8 £5'/G61'2 YR 5.8/ 16°vE8'2L BWODH] JUaUNSsany|
000 sigysuel]
9G'€05'€98'E 19626’ L0 228" ¥5'829'FC 86'7ag'L 28129 10F JE08Z'09 8T6IZ'EE $£9ZP'0ZE's |Ejolans
{gs'1L12'208) | (06°656'GE) (os0s0zt) , loo'2€8'9) | (ggese'ed) . - {0g'629%9) (Z6'¥0L'c6E) sanypuadxy
00°451'29 O0'EES'L 00°£64'2 00'90Z' 00'982°L ooleg'st 00°609 000 00'€19'9Z 8924 Joeduw|
lapenp pig
$1'850°FOE'Y £9°Z5€°ZE L&'bPe LY $9'608'08 £2'292'EL 1£950'288 loyse'es eT6lT'es LE'865°289'E  SL0Z/0S/e aduefeq Bulpuy
0002’8 £y'68 Z9'v8 EVEL YO LY GOvLL gl vel 0’29 GEAGY'L OLUCOU| JUBLISAU]
000 sIdIsuUel|
1 ¥GE'G6Z'Y 0z 182'¢e 62°09L'L¥ LL'OEZ'gE 61'GLE'EZ z21gz'zae 69'022'99  96°L1Z'EE 06'0r1'089'C  IBICIgNS
{(z6°200'901) (gg'zL} (£0'0£6°£01L) saunypuadxg
oocLy'are 00°982't2 00°'868°LE 00881 L1 00°¥8E'5) 00'+5S5'9L 00'SrL'E 00826 00°0£5'8. 5994 yorduw)
.mwtm-_c puz
90°F6'95L'Y 0Z° 10501 62°298'6 LL8r0'EL 6L LEG'L TLLTLS0E y9'8PL'P9  BG'EBZ'OE CO'LPS60L'E  SLOZ/LEIE @ouejeq Bulpuy
00'¥oL'8z 6t€0L 9°6EL ov'2¥Z LE08 ¥6'610°Z £G°LEY oLv0g 68°196'¥Z SLUO0U| JUBLLYSSAU|
000 000 siasuel]
90'084'82L'Y 14 26€'0L L9ZZL'6 1L 008'81 89°082'L 81'90.'€0E L02LL'€D  Z8'610°0E ¥L'EL6'Y80'E  [210idns
(oc ovz'ss) , (agzvo'el) looeo’'sey |, OFZEL728) . 000 . 000 000 00’0 sa.nypuedxg
00°/89'EE oosve'e 00'8¥e'e 00 /e8'L 009 00'SLE'ZL 00642 000 00'828't L 502 JoBduy
__wtﬂzﬂw 8L
Z¥'6EE'0LL'Y 21G°160'02 L9'gev'ie L2 LOL'YS 280" L g1 €6€'L6Z LOZhP'Ee  Z9§l0'08 PLGRL'2IO'E ¥iieerzl ‘rea Bupuuibag
aljuejeq _Cm.:ﬂ.._ juawajlojuy uoposlold :D_um.ton_m:m._._. JajEeAR vad JoMag MS uojjealddyd
yseo MET] ailid » uwpy syded
N oay anypuadiy
LLLZ000¢ 18- 6azZy 16T¥ T4 4 GazZy hJ:TA £62p Z6ey 90y enueAsy
LILLODLY 22 100V 4sed

§10Z ‘0 Jetqwaydag papus sSyjuoLW auu au} Jog
Aanay 394 Joedwy jo Arewwing

.

130 A10

punguawdoy

129



City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and investments - $ 784415 $ 472,304
Accrued Receivables - -

Total Assets $ 784,415 $ 472,304

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 30,908 $ 3679
Miscellaneous claims payable 12,508 18,278
Encumbrance A _ 7 26,647 9,883
Assigned fund balance o 714,354 440,464

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 784,415 $ 472,304

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
_For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 2015 2014

Amended Year-to-Date Yearto-Date Year-to-Date
levenue Budget Budget Actual * Actual
- Property Taxes $ 433,200 $ 433,200 $ 433,200 $ 430,000
Grants. - : - - ‘4,923 10,082
Landfill Siting - : 67,000 66,483 67,000 67,000
Investment Income 4,500 3,375 6,950 10,435
Miscellanous Revenue - 25,000 10,869 4,897 10,440
Transfers from Other Funds 475,000 356,250 475,000 -
Transfers from Fund Balance 80,882 - - -
Total Revenue 1,085,682 870,177 991,970 527,957
Expenditures: , _ .
General Government ' 240,214 141,397 43,002 28,457
Public Safety 478,344 346,414 393,344 319,280
Public Works 160,700 101,775 125,466 - 53,028
Health and Human Services 800 600 - -
Culture and Recreation 12,000 9,000 . 8,531 19,303
Conservation and Development 5,665 3,187 1,671 -
Contingency . 130,000 97,500 8,850 5,000
Total expenditures 1,027,723 699,873 580,964 425,068
Revenue over (under) expenditures 57,859 170,304 411,006 102,889
Fund balance, beginning of year 303,348 303,348 337,575
Fund balance, end of period $ 361,207 $ 714,354 $ 440464
* Amount shown is actual expenditures plus encumbrance 130
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Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payabie

Encumbrance
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Revenue:
Property Taxes
Landfill
[nvestment iIncome
Transfers from Other Funds
Property Sales

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Public Safety
Public Works

Total expenditures
Revenue over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period

City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

* Amount shown is actual expenditures plus emcumbrance

2015 2014
$ 2,393,853 $ 2,178,400
$ 2,393,853 $ 2,176,400
$ - $ -
89,815 15,492
2,304,038 2,160,908
$ 2,393,853 $ 2,176,400

Comparative Statement of Revenue, E'xpenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 2015 2014

Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual * Actual
$ 339,500 $339,500 g 339,500 3 337,000
100,000 99,228 100,000 100,000
20,000 15,000 27,995 39,795
25,000 18,750 - -
- - 6,590 3,077
484 500 472 478 474,085 479,872
194,000 139,088 180,131 56,159
188,000 133,305 179,588 178,850
382,000 322,393 358,720 235,009
102,500 150,085 114,365 244 863
2,189,673 2,189,673 1,916,045
$ 2292173 $ 2,304,038 - 3 2,160,908
141803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2015\Equip Revolving  September 2015 131
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City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets
Cash and investments
Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Encumbrances
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended Sgptember 30, 2015 and 2014

Revenue:

Property Taxes

Landfill Siting

Investment Income

Refunds and Reimbursements
Transfer from General Fund

Total revenue

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year

Transfer to General Fund
Street Reconstruction Program - Prior Year(s)

Total expenditures

Revenue over (under) expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period

10/26/2015

2015 2014
$ 1,061,108 $ 1,025,806
$ 1,061,109 $ 1,025,896
$ - 3 1,140
822,353 -
238,756 1,024,756
$ 1,061,108 $ 1,025,896

2015 2015 2014
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Budget Totals Totals
$ 687,300 $ 687,300 $ 681,600
133,000 133,000 133,000
6,000 5,353 10,392
- 2,441 -
200,000 25,000 -
1,026,300 853,094 824,092
960,000 843,775 18,799
200,000 - -
- 1,399 -
1,160,000 845,174 18,799
(133,700) 7,920 806,193
230,836 230,836 218,563
$ 97,136 $ 238,756 $ 1,024,756

Findata:Qtrrpt Street improvement.xisx September 2015
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City of Franklin

Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet

September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and investments $ 2,042,450 228,485
Accrued receivables 847 847

Total Assets $ 2,043,297 229,332

| iabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable 263,318 459,331
Contracts Payabie 134,298 50,861
Encumbrance 529,002 -
Assigned fund balance - 1,116,679 (280,860)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,043,297 229,332

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 2014
Amended Year-to-Date  Year-to-Date

Levenue: Budget Totals Totals
Landfill Siting $ . 830,000 260,814 253,296
Transfers from Other Funds 3,358,405 - -
Transfers from Impact Fees 1,484,625 501,715 100,000
Transfers from Connection Fees 2,050,000 - -
Donations 100,000 - ‘ -
investment Income - 3,768 166

Total revenue 7,823,030 766,297 353,462

Expenditures:

General Government 1,975,000 - 3,127
Public Safety 25,181 200 235,433
Public Works 3,571,405 118,227 462,160
Culture and Recreation 1,465,580 1,390,543 244 256
Sewer & Water - 81,016 8,274
Contingency 2,303,242 35,233 -

Total expenditures 9,340,408 1,625,219 953,250

Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,517,378) (858,922) (599,788)

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,975,601 1,975,601 318,928

Fund balance, end of period $ 458,223 $ 1,116,679 $ (280,860)

10/26/2015
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City of Franklin
2015 Nine Month Financial Report
Sanitary Sewer Fund

The nine month 2015 financial report for the City of Franklin Sanitary Sewer Fund is
attached. Significant fluctuations from the budget are detailed beiow.

Operating Revenue

Sewer service revenue is greater than the budget by $41,871. Revenues are $33,750
(2.3%) greater than the prior year. The 2015 rate increase became effective in the first
quarter of 2015. Much of the revenue increase is the result of additional customers
rather than a rate increase.

Operating Expenditures

Sewer service charges to the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District for the first
three quarters are $1,574,605 which is $22,998 less than the budget.

Other operating expenditures, not including MMSD charges, are $179,429 less than the
budgeted levels. Of that amount, $29,971 is in sewer improvements.

Non-operating Revenue (Expenditures)

Investment income and expense relates to the Clean Water Fund loan, and is a pass
thru to MMSD. The depreciation on contributions was on budget. The value of the
capital contributions is recorded at year end.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the measure of the health of the operation. In the first two
quarters, the retained earnings have decreased $1,090,268. This is due to the
construction of the new building.

Sewer Infrastructure Funding Sources

In May, 2013, the Common Council adopted Ordinance 2013-2105 to create the
Southwest Sewer District and provide for the extension of and cost recovery of public
sanitary sewer within the service area served by the Ryan Creek Interceptor public
sanitary sewer. An Impact fee was established at $2,928 for a residential unit with an
additional $1,464 for each additional unit. Through September 30, 2015, $32,208 has
been collected.

In addition fo the sewer fund operations, the City also coliects a sewer connection fee,

on connections from new and existing construction outside the Southwest Sewer
service area, to be used to fund sewer construction projects. YTD collection of sewer
connection fees in 2015 amounts fo $21,720 and funds on hand at September 30, 2015
totaled $448,265.

L:\41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2015\Sewer cover memao Q3
2015.docx
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City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

10/21/2015

2015 2014
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 925170 $ 2,050,852
Accounts receivable 1,013,175 978,153
Due from Franklin Water Utility 83,518 70,107
Miscellaneous receivable 30,767 96,426
Total current assets 2,052,630 3,195,538
Non current assets:
Due from MMSD 25,307,266 25,771,125
Sanitary Sewer plant in service:
Land 358,340 358,340
Buildings and improvements 1,621,433 1,605,333
Improvements other than buildings 54,115,278 53,965,043
Machinery and equipment 780,406 819,266
Construction in progress 1,597,085 102,471
: ~ 5B,472,542 56,850,453
Less accumulated depreciation (14,039,345) (13,412,052)
Net sanitary sewer plant in service 44 433,197 43,438,401
-Total Assets $ 71,793,093 $ 72,405,064
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current [iabilities:
Accounts payable $ 788,825 $ 522519
Accrued liabilities 66,232 26,441
Due to Franklin Water Utility 17,015 -
Due to General Fund - non-interest bearing 2,295,042 2,010,184
Total current liabilities 3,167,114 2,559,144
Non current liabiiities:
Accrued compensated absences 61,308 57,727
General Obligation Notes payable - CWF 22,357,276 23,486,622 |
Total liabilities 25,585,699 26,103,383
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,433,197 43,438,401
Sewer equipment replacement 313,558 277,230
Retained eamnings 1,460,639 2,586,040
Total net assets 46,207,394 46,301,671
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 71,793,093 $ 72,405,064
135
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City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Net Assets

For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2015 Current Prior
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals
Operating Revenue
Residential $ 1,865,200 $ 1,397,855 $ 1,402,524 $ - 1,384,641
Commercial 414,100 318,112 358,388 330,090
industrial 385,700 285,604 313,224 296,907
Pubiic Authority 177,800 134,094 100,214 118,575
Penalties/Other 42,000 21,153 18,242 16,450
Muiti Family 416,200 312,150 318,247 306,557
Total Operating Revenue 3,301,600 2,488 968 2,510,838 2,453,220
Operating Expenditures
Salaries and benefits $ 456,545 $ 351,188 $ 327,775 $ 324,092
Confractual services 105,775 85,314 89,287 88,086
Supplies 93,800 70,350 42 457 . 41,047
Facility charges 59,357 43,647 21,279 28,342
Shared meter costs 10,000 7,500 - -
Sewar service - MMSD 2,130,137 1,697,603 1,574,605 1,492,990
~*her aperating costs 21,945 17,088 17,282 17,017
‘dcated expenses 105,443 79,082 85,832 78,300
Sewer improvements 170,000 139,077 29,971 113,381
Depreciation 68,700 52,275 52,200 47,700
Total operating expenditures 3,222,702 2,443,125 2,240,698 2,230,965
Operating Income (L.oss) 78,2988 25,843 270,141 222255
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures) -
Misceltaneous income 2,200 1,787 5,407 1,250
investment income 584,337 438,253 309,825 347,886
Interest expense {564,337} (423,253) {289,119) (302,345)
Total non-operating revenue (expenditures) 22,200 16,787 26,113 46,791
income {Loss} before Capital Contributions 100,498 42,630 296,254 269,048
Retzined Earnings- Beginning 2,864,465 2,864,485 2,864,465 2,660,847
Transfer (to) from Invested in Capital Assets {1,314,300) (985,725) (1,386,522) (68,623)
Retained Earnings- Ending 1,650,663 1,821,370 1,774,197 2,863,270
Capital Contributions 600,000 450,000 - -
Depreciation - CIAC (591,400) (443,550) (443,700) {440,100)
Transfer (to) from Retained Earmings 1,314,300 985,725 1,386,522 66,623
Change in Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,322,900 992,175 042 822 (373,477)
Net investment in Capital Assets-Beginning 43,490,375 43,480,375 43,490,375 43,811,878
.. Investment in Capital Assets-Ending 44 813,275 44,482 550 44 433,197 43,438,401
Total net assets $ 46,463,838 $ 46,403,820 $ 46,207,394 $ 46,301,671
136
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City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (joss) $ 270,141 $ 222255
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 52,200 47,700
(Increase) decrease in assets: )
Accounts receivable 150,025 (184,908)
Taxes receivable 110,305 133,253
Due from other funds (10,132) (15,409)
Due from MMSD & Other Governments
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (34,279) (54,332)
Accrued expenses - 27,585 1,581
Due to other funds 8,805 (10,214)
Due fo general fund 53 1,403,700
Total Adjustments 302,562 1,321,371
!  >ash Provided by Operating Activities $ 572,703 $ 1,543,626
Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Due from MMSD & Other Governments 748,664 (319,739)
Notes payable (1,129,246) (1,078,801)
Acquisition of capital assets (1,438,722) (114,324)
Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities (1,819,304) (1,512,964)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and other income 315,232 349,136
interest exepense (289,119) (302,345)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,220,488) 77,453
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period 2,145,658 1,873,399
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period $ 925,170 $ 2,050,852
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Frankiin Municipal Water Utility
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

' Operating revenue is below budgeted levels through the first three quarters.
Actual third quarter billings were used for the statements.

2 Operating expenditures are greater than the budget for the first three quarters, entirely

in Wholesale Water.
The bill from Oak Creek was estimated for the statements.

The Utility soid $1,290,000 of 20 year General Obligation bonds in December 2014.
The bonds will be used to finance the Water Building construction costs.

The Utility expended $1 ,724,688 on the Water & Wastewater Facility and a water
main relay thru September 30, 2015. An additional $99,000 was expended on meters
and a utiity van. -

Water Connection Fee

Prior to May 31, 2002, the City collected a water connection fee on new construction and
connections fo existing properties, to be used to fund water main construction projects.
The water connection fees on hand on September 30, 2015 total $253,372.

Water Impact Fee

Since May 31, 2002 a water irhpact fee on residential and commercial construction replaced
the water connection fee. Water impact Fees collected in 2015 total $93,007.

Water Impact fees on hand at September 30, 2015 total approximately $416,818.

in Q3 2014, the City transferred $873,727 of Impact fees for the 2002 construction of
the Puetz Water tower. .
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Frankiin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 & 2014

Assets .

Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivabie
Due from City of Frankiin

Total current assets

Utility plant in service:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Construction in Progress
improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

|ess accumulated depreciation

Net utility plant in service
Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to City of Franklin
Customer deposits
Compensated absences reserve
Bond Payabie

Total liabilities
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Retained earnings
Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

10/12/2015

2015

2014

$ 917,595
1,884,403
22,202

$ 1,280,691
1,707,377
68,321

2,824,200

162,885

1,812,978 .

1,908,240
53,965,133
4,436,424

3,056,389

162,885
1,833,594
107,145
53,434,283
4,436,664

62,285,661
16,167,774

59,974,581
15,390,965

46,117,887

44 583 616

$ 48,942,087

$47,640,005

$ 321,994
1,171,540
18,1956

61,309
1,221,494

$ 29,936
830,689
332,542

1,200
57,727

2,794,493

46,117,887
29,707

46,147,594

1,252,094

44,583,616
1,804,295

$ 48,942,087

46,387,811

$47,640,005
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Frankiin Municipal Water Utility

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,

and Changes in Net Assets

For the period ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Operating Revenue

Total metered sales

Fire protection

Forfeited discounts, penalties and other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenditures

Operation and maintenance expenses:
Source of supply
Pumping T
Water treatment’ c
Transmission and distribution- - -
Customers’ accounts :
Administrative and general

Total operation and maintenance expenses

Depreciation .

Taxes

" Total Operating Expenditures :
Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Sundry
Interest on investments
Depreciation - CIAC

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income before Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions-Developer & Municipality

Net change in net assets
Net Assets, beginning of period
Net Assets, end of period

10/12/2015

2015

2014

3,815,851
488,889
27,179

3,633,568
471,212
27,641

4,331,919

4,132,421

2,431,037
95,341

3,100 .

280,114

31,357

280,550

2,205,135
93,475
8,127
332,039
37,188
254,863

3,121,499
253,800
844,364

2,930,827
277,200
820,319

4,219,663

4.028,346

112,256

104,075

65,862
2,970
(575,100)

46,715
(2,886)
(551,250)

(506,268)

(507 421)

(394,012)

(403,346)

873,727

(394,012)
46,541,606

470,381
45,917,530

$ 46,147,504

$46,387,911
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Frankiin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ 112,256
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
" net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 253,800
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (605,755)
Due from other funds (6,158)
Taxes receivable 189,877

Accrued receivables -
Prepaid expenses : -
Increase (decrease) in liabiiities:

Accounts payable. (488,934)

Accrued expenses 855,000

Due to other funds (40,123)

Advance from municipality -

Customer deposits (100)

Total Adjustments " 257,607

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 369,863

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (1,869,905)
Capital Contribution - Impact Fees -
Interest paid on long term debt _ -
Principal on long term debt (55,000)

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities (1,924,905)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest, property rental & other income 68,832
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,486,210)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period 2,403,805
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period $ 917,595
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2014

$

104,075

277,200

(403,254)
10,385
181,829

502

(716,942)
830,000
215,277
(60,000)

(1,300)

333,697

437,772

(128,759)
873,727

744,968

43,829

1,226,569
54,122

$

1,280,691




Frankiin Municipal Water Utility

Detailed Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Net Assets

For the period ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Annual Year to Date Current Prior
Account Description Budget Budget Yearto Date Year to Date
Operating Revenue
Metered Sales-Residential $ 2,809,500 $ 2,174,064 $ 2,206,809 § 2,081,484
. Meterad Sales-Commercial 1,707,000 1,324,850 527,411 495 823
Metered Sales-Industrial 338,200 246,700 293,682 286,621
Other Sales to Public Authority 258,000 192,247 190,128 216,355
Metered Sales-Multifamily - - 502,732 453,300
Metered Sales-lrrigation - - 95,089 79,985
Total Metered Saies 5,113,700 3,937,961 3,815,851 3,633,568
Unmetered Sales 6,500 3,031 1,545 1,826
Private Fire Protection 118,700 90,023 80,808 88,500
Pubiic Fire Protection 510,925 384,470 398,281 382,712
Forfeited Discount 55,000 27,318 25,634 25,715
Total Operating Revenue 1 $ 5,804,825 $ 4,442,804 $ 4,331,919 $ 4,132,421
Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expense
Source of Supply-Oper Labor $ 1,560 % 1,200 § 138 § 1,828
Operations Supplies & Expense 10,500 6,335 5,827 5,622
Wholesale Water 3,116,500 2,337,375 2,425,072 2,194,708
Maint of Water Source plant 4,500 2,880 - 2,877
Source of Supply 3,133,060 2,347,790 ~ 2,431,037 2,205,135
Pumping-Fuel 61,350 40,318 28,362 37,250
Pumping-Operations Labor 70,720 - 54,400 58,777 54,108
Pumping-Main Labor Pumping 10,800 B,308 1,667 301
Pumping-Main Expense Pumping 11,000 8,462 68,535 1,818
Pumping 153,870 111,488 95,341 93,475
Water Treat Chemicals 500 - 343 -
Water Treat Operation Labor 540 415 241 1,507
Water Treat Tests 23,000 14,834 2,076 6,583
Water Treat Maint Labor 540 415 172 -
Water Treat Maint Expenses 500 279 268 37
Water Treatment 25,080 15,943 3,100 8,127
Storage Software Maintenance 13,000 3,118 - 6,778 16,914
Trans & Distr Labor 34,611 26,624 19,267 -
Trans & distr Supp Exp 31,000 19,122 6,886 6,398
Trans & Distr Safety Supplies & Expenst¢ 5,000 1,861 670 374
Maint Labor-Distr Reservoir 4,000 3,077 350 343
Maint Expenses-Distr Reservoir 4,000 2,336 1,708 2,535
Maintenance Labor-Mains 16,224 12,480 10,137 12,564
Maintenance Expense-Mains 50,000 32,527 27,985 71,238
L ocating Labor-Mains 12,150 8,348 7,505 8,069
. Maint Labor-Services 20,000 15,385 25,180 8,111
Maint Expense-Services 57,000 38,581 55,797 75,577
Locating Labor-Services 12,000 8,231 6,082 7,928
Maint Labor-Meters 21,632 16,640 21,643 17,424
Maint Expenses-Meters 3,000 2,193 1,121 692
Maint Labor-Hydrants 30,000 23,077 26,962 27 437
Maint Expenses-Hydrants 50,000 33,653 32,051 39,723
Maint Labor-Plant 12,000 9,231 25415 24,020
Maint Expenses-Plant 16,000 14,885 3,667 12,684
fransmission & Distribution 391,617 273,265 280,114 332
Findata:H20 3rd Quarter 2015 deta
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Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Detailed Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Net Assets
For the period ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

Annual Year to Date Current Prior
Account Description Budget Budget Year to Date Year to Date
Meter Reading Labor 8,436 6,489 4,880 4 589
Acct & Collection Labor 24,066 18,512 7,009 6,611
Acctg & Colf Payroll Exp 14,007 10,775 8,855 8,850
Supplies & Expense ' 8,000 5,096 4,057 4,142
Bank Fees 10,150 7.621 6,805 10,661
Uncollectible Accounts - 1,751 1,525
Customer Accounts 64,659 48,493 31,357 37,188
Admin & General Payroli Exp 48,714 37,472 36,540 35,250
Office Supplies 1,200 800 372 138
Conferences/Dues/Subscriptions 6,500 4114 2,258 4,966
Miieage 1,000 728 193 437
QOutside Services . 48,200 36,200 49,278 19,121
Insurance ' 31,150 21,974 18,720 18,720
Employee Leave Time & Benefits 202,611 155,853 156,643 159,984
Regulatory Commision Exp 5,000 o8 1,832 125
Misc General Expense 1,000 406 83 -
Maintenance of General Plant 5,500 5,024 13,560 15,433
Transportation Expenses 19,500 14,604 1,071 689
Administrative and general 368,375 277,373 280,550 254,863
Total Operation and Maintenance
Expenditures 4,136,661 3,074,352 3,121,499 2,830,827
Depreciation : 338,200 262,411 253,800 . 277,200
Taxes-Property Tax Equivalent 1,400,000 815,106 825,300 802,800
Taxes-FICA 24,743 17,360 19,064 17,519
Total Operating Expenditures 2 5,599,604 4,169,229 4,219,663 4,028,346
Operating Income $ 205221 $ 273,575 $§ 112,256 $ 104,075
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
interest Income © 2,000 1,500 2,970 (2,886)
Misc Revenue 1,000 705 1,437 -
Intereston LTD (32,000) {24,000) - -
Bond/Note Issuance Cost - . - - -
Water Property Rent 38,000 33,005 61,274 42 708
Other Water Revenue - - 3,151 4,007
interest-Debt to Municipality - - - -
Total non-operating revenue 10,000 11,210 68,832 43,829
Income before capital contributions $ 215221 $ 284785 § 181,088 $ 147,904
Retained earnings - beginning 1,464,724 1,464,724 1,464,724 634,223
Transfer (o) from invested in capital assets (1,735,680)  (1,301,760) (1,616,105) 1,022,168
Retained earnings - ending $ (55,735) $ 447,749 § 29,707 $ 1,804,295
Capital contributions 500,000 100,000 - 873,727
Depreciation - CIAC (766,800) {575,100) {575,100} (551,250}
Transfer (to) from retained eamings 1,735,680 1,301,760 1,616,105 (1,022,168)
Change in net investment 1,357,410 420,398 1,041,005 (699,681)

Net investment in capital assets - beginning __ 45,076,882 45,076,882 45,076,882  45283,307

Net investment in capital assets - ending _$ 46,434,292 $ 45,497,280 $46,117,887 $ 44,583,616
Total net assets $46,378,557 § 45,945,028 $46,147,594 $ 46,387,911

Findata:H20 3rd Quarter 2015 detailed inc stmt] 43



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Balance Sheet
September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014
Cash and investments $ 2,721,923 % 1415038
Accounts receivable 576 576
Interfund advance receivabie 1,088,000 2,338,000
Prepaid expenses 57,500 57,500

Total Assets . $ 3867909 § 3811112

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable 3 1,138 8 125,839
Claims payable 370,500 378,100
Unrestricted net assets 3,486,360 3,308,073

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3867999 § 3811112

City of Franklin Seif Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
o o, 2015 2015 2014
2018 Year4o-Date Year-to-Date  Year-to-Date
Revenue Forecast Forecast Actual Actuat
Medical Premiums-City $ 2608900 $ 1,956675 $ 1,931,898 § 1,986,552
Medical Premiums-Employee 397,600 298,200 310,977 334,340
Other - Investment Income, etc. 35,277 26,458 59,168 ;88,004
Medical Revenue 3,041,777 2,281,333 2,302,043 2,409,896
Dental Premiums-City 112,600 84,450 78,483 - .78,372
Denta! Premiums-Retirees 5,750 4313 3,456 4,800
Dental Premiums-Employee 55,200 41,400 39,735 40,383
Dental Revenue 173,550 130,163 121,674 123,555
Total Revenue 3,215,327 2,411,495 2423717 2,533,451
Expenditures: o
Active Employees-Medical
Medical claims - Current Year .. 1,900,000 1,425,000 1,206,230 1,003,985
. Medical claims - Prior Year . - L. - 194,214 361,617
Prescription drug claims . 290,000 217,500 . 228,589 204,486
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage - - (8,910) (419)
Total Claims-Actives 2,190,000 1,642,500 1,620,123 1,569,669
Medical Claim Fees 185,000 138,750 126,072 152,247
Memberships ) - - 3,180 4,525
Miscellaneous Weliness - 12,000 9,000 11,926 7,023
Section 125 administration Fee 10,700 8,025 383 3,811
Stop Loss Premiums 587,160 440 370 445,038 462,403
ACAFees = ’ - - 35,203 -
Total Medical Costs-Actives 2,984,860 2,238,645 2,242,925 2,199,678
Active Employees-Dental .
Dental claims - Current Year 150,000 112,500 104,158 103,213
Dental claims - Prior Year 2,000 1,500 10,137 16,966
Dental Claim Fees 12,000 8,000 7,229 9,361
Total Dental Costs-Actives 164,000 123,000 121,524 129,540
Retirees-Dental
Dental claims - Current Year 5,200 3,900 2,417 4,290
Dental claims - Prior Year 900 675 563 -
Dental Claim Fees 200 150 g9 271
Total Dental Costs-Refirees 6,300 4725 3,079 4,561
Total Dental Costs 170,300 127,725 124,603 134,101

Total Expenditures 3,155,160 2,366,370 2,367,528 2,333,779

Revenue over (under) expenditures 60,167 _§ 45125 56,189 199,672

Net assets, beginning of year 3,440,171 3,440,171 3,106,401

Net assets, end of period _$ 3,500,338 $ 3495360 $ 3,308,073

10/22/2015

Findata:Qtrpt Self insurance September 2015
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City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Empioyment Benefits Trust
‘ Balance Sheet

September 30, 2015 and 2014

Assets 20156 2014
Cash and investments $ (34909) $ (116451)
Investments held in trust - Fixed inc 1,207,715 998,532
investments held in trust - Equities 3,332,715 3,396,378
Accounts receivable 14,828 12,968
Due from Water Utility 730 1,440

Total Assets $ 45210789 § 4292865

Lizbilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ - 8 14,917
Claims payable 57,482 77,182

Due from OPEB Trust - -
Net assets held in trust for post employment benefi__ 4,463,587 4,200,766
Total Liabiiities and Fund Balance $ 4,521,079 $ 4,292 865
City of Franklin Post Empioyment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
2015 2014
2015 Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Revenue . Forecast Actual Actual
ARC Medical Charges - City $ 167,800 $ 148854 5 148,220
Medical Charges - Retirees 90,000 85,444 84 492
Implicit Rate Subsidy 103,100 80,599 34,956
interest Income - - {1,114)
Medical Revenue 361,000 314,887 267,554
Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medicatl claims - Current Year 175,000 343,202 130,833
Medical claims - Prior Year 12,000 ‘22,505 86,481
Prescription drug claims 110,000 58,097 61,761
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage - (156,517) (69,880)
Total Claims-Retirees 297,000 267,987 209,195
Medical Claim Fees 14,500 7,132 12,177
Stop Loss Premiums 49,500 36,822 46,006
Miscelianeous Expense : - 225 86
ACA Fees - 3,031 -
Total Medical Costs-Retirees 361,000 314,997 267.554
Revenue over (under) expenditures - - -
Annual Required Contribution-Net 487,523 198,352 229 405
Other - Investment Income, etc. 338,400 (152.994) 165,177
Total Revenues 805,923 45,358 394,582
Net Revenues (Expenditures) 805,923 45,358 394,582
Net assets, beginning of year 4418 238 4,418,239 3,806,184
Net assets, end of period $ 5,224,162 $ 4483597 § 4,200,766

10/22/2015 Findata:Qtrrpt Refiree Health Fund September 2015
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Statement of Revenue and Expenses

City of Franklin
Park Commission

For the Nine months ended September 30, 2015

2015 2015 Current 2014
Adopted Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals
General Fund Operating Expenses:
Personal Services . $ 109,328 $ 84,295 $ 89,634 $ 90,354
Park Maintenance 14,595 6,951 10,121 7.210
Uniforms 250 - 104 -
Aliocated insurance 4,900 3,643 3,875 3,596
Mileage 500 351 190 64
Utiiities 7,100 - 3413 3,762
Total Operating Fund Expenses $ 136,673 $ 85,240 $ 107.437 $ 104,976
Capital Outlay Fund Expenses:
Landscaping-Park/Tree Maint $ 2,000 $ 1,500 $ 300 $ -
Park Improvements-Development 7.000 5,250 5,580 10,904
Park Equipment & Supplies 3,000 2,250 2,641 8,399
Total Capital Outlay Expenditures $ 12,000 $ 5,000 $ 8,531 $ 19,303
Deveiopment Fund Expenses:
Appraisal services 5 - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 1,809,625 106,568 501,715 106,000
Total Capital iImprovement Expenditures 1,608,825 108,568 501,715 100,000
Capital improvement Fund Expenses:
General Park Development ‘ $ 150,000 $ - § - $ -
Pleasant View Park - Improvements - - 51,797 244 242
Park Improvements 1,100,000 - 1,204,218 -
North Cape Road Recreation & Bike Trail 104,000 - 423 15
Frankiin Bike & Hiking Trail 55,600 - 81,721
Playground Equipment - Neighborhood Parks 50,000 - 50,000 -
Southbrook Recreation/Bike Trail - - 13,010 -
Ernie Lake Park Equipment & Supplies 5,980 - 5,980 -
Park Equipment & Suppiies - - 3,383 -
Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 1,465,680 - 1,390,543 244 257
Less Impact Fees Transfer - - - -
Amount Due From impact Fees $ 1,485,580 3 - $ 1,380,543 $ 244,257

10/22/2015

Qirrpt PARKS 3rd Quarter 2015




APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
Sha- COUNCIL ACTION 11/03/15
LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER
PERMITS H.1.

See attached list from meeting of November 3, 2015.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
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City of Franklin

9229 W, Looinis Road
Franklit, WI 531329728

414-425-7500
License Committee
Agenda¥*
Aldermen’s Room
November 3, 2015 — 6:00 pm

1. Call to Order & Roll Call | Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions
License Applications Reviewed Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve | Hold Deny
Operator - New Troy A Petroske
53;5;1‘;' 10502 W Cortez Cir, #13
e Franklin, WI 53132
Swiss Street Pub & Grill
Operator — New Stephanie L Bluemel
2015-16 10701 W Grange Ave, #26
Hales Corners, WI 53130
Romey's Place
Operator — New Jaime N Petricek
2015-16 5569 S 41% St
Greenfield, WI 53221
St Paul Evangelical Lutheran Church
Operator — New Julie C Schier
2015-16 5290 S 43" st
Greenfield, WI 53220
Three Cellars
3. Adjournment
Time

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute & meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Couneil will not take formal action at this meeting.
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APPR(?/)C\ REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

g& e COUNCIL ACTION : 11/3/15
ITEM NUMBER
Bills Vouchers and Payroll Approval 11

Attached are vouchers dated October 16, 2015 through November 2, 2015 Nos. 168354 through

Nos. 158533 in the amount of $ 1,870,806.00. Included in this listing are EFT's Nos. 2995 through Nos.
3007 and Library vouchers totaling $ 28,018.88. Voided checks in the amount of $ (611.40) are
separately listed.

Early release disbursements under Resolution 2013-6920 in the amount of $ 735,861.67 are provided on
a separate listing and are also included on the complete disbursement listing.

The net payroll dated October 30, 2015 is $ 376,457.15, previously estimated at $ 363,000.00. Payroll
deductions for October 30, 2015 are $ 377,694.25, previously estimated at $ 370,000.00.

The estimated payroll for November 13, 2015 is $ 350,000.00 with estimated deductions of $ 200,000.00.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements Nos. 73 dated September 29, 2015 in the amount of
$ 84.21. This disbursement has been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

Voucher for Jefferson Electric in the amount of $ 8,081.73 for 2009-2015 water aécount refund.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion approving net general checkihg account City vouchers in the range of Nos. 158354 through
Nos. 158533 in the amount of $ 1,870,806.00 dated October 16, 2015 through November 2, 2015.

Motion approving the net payroli dated October 30, 2015 in the amount of $ 376,457.15 and payments of
the various payroll deductions in the amount of $ 377,694.25 plus any City matching payments, where
required.

Motion approving the net payroll dated November 13, 2015 estimated at $ 350,000.00 and payments of
the various payroll deductions estimated at $ 200,000.00, plus any City matching payments, where
required.

Motion approving property tax disbursement in the amount of $84.21 dated September 29, 2015,

Motion approving payment to Jefferson Electric in the amou-nt of $ 8,081.73.

Finance Dept - KM
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